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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (THE "GEM") OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE *STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision fo invest only affer
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities tfraded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securifies fraded on GEM.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The two major businesses of the Group are, (a) e-commerce
and provision of online sales platform, (b) and professional IT
contract and maintenance services business.

Following the depression in the first half of 2012, the global
economic performance in the second half of 2012 continued
to be sluggish. The spreading epidemics of Europe’s debt
crisis, the threat of fiscal cliff fo the U.S.'s economy and
the slowdown of economic growth in developed countries
have all encumbered the recovery of global economy
and curbed consumption emotions, bringing challenges
to the Group's earnings performance. The performance
of the Group in the beginning of he year ended 30 June
2013 (the "Year") were underperformed but started picking
up fowards the end of the year. During the second half of
2012, the macroeconomic instability indirectly undermined
the consumer sentiment which also affected the Group’s
e-commerce business, leading to a decrease in the Group’s
sales. In the beginning of 2013, the European debt problems
were gradually mitigated and the global economy was
slightly improved, fostering the recovery of the Group’s sales.
As compared fo last year, the Group recorded a overall
stable revenue figure for the Year.

The Group experienced a large decline in the profit
for the Year. Such decline was atfributed mainly to the
impairment loss on the other intangible assefs and the
goodwill of approximately HK$19,260,000 and HK$10,436,000,
respectively arising from the termination of the B2B (business-
to-business) online trading platform, and the decrease
in gross profit of the Group due fo keen competition
in the e-commerce business, thus increasing the staff
cost, marketing and other administrative expenses for
enhancement of the Group’s competitiveness in the market.

E-commerce and provision of online sales
platform

DX.com ("DX"), the foreign trade B2C e-commerce website
operated by the Group, was sfill the major source of profit
contribution to the Group. In order to better reflect the
significance of contribution of DX fo the revenue and profits
of the Group, the Board of Directors has proposed the
Company to be renamed as "DX.com Holdings Limited”
subsequent to the end of the Year. The proposed name has
also been approved by the extraordinary general meeting
held on 6 September 2013.
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B2C (Business-to-Customer) e-commerce website

As one of the world’s leading online shopping websites,
DX’s customers spanned across over 200 counties and
regions with loyal customers from emerging and developing
countries such as Brazil, Russia and Argentina in particular.
Currently, there are over five million accumulated purchasing
customers. According to Alexa Internet, Inc, an organization
providing website ranking statistics, on 17 September 2013,
DX was ranked the world’s number 19 in the shopping
category and well received by consumers worldwide. As of
30 June 2013, DX website offered more than 120,000 types
of products across 15 categories, including digital products,
electronic and audio-visual accessories, mobile phone
accessories, computer hardware, gardening tools, personal
care products, outdoor gear, apparel accessories, auto parts
and fools, stationery, creatfive toys, beauty and cosmetic
tools, holiday gifts and pet supplies. In addition, the website
provides free shipping worldwide, allowing consumers to
enjoy a convenient worldwide online shopping experience
with no extra delivery charge. As consumers’ demand for
product diversity and quality confinued to increase, DX's
professional product team seeks unique products from the
market at all fimes to widen its product portfolio, maintaining
DX’s competitiveness and enhancing customer loyalty.

Meanwhile, being a pioneer in social media marketing,
the Group is dedicated to providing value-added services
to consumers. The DX forum allows consumers to share
product reviews and user experiences, and thereby the
consumers can share their inferests and discuss the latest
product frends on the infernet. Currently, there are over a
million posts by customers on the forum. Moreover, DX has
established accounts on social media platforms such as
Facebook, Twitter and YouTube to provide consumers the
latest product information and unfold various interactive
activities or promotional sale campaigns for consumers. With
social media marketing, the marketing cost can be lowered
and effective online promotions can be executed. At present,
there are over a million fans on DX’'s Facebook page.

In addition, following the launch of the iPhone app, the
Group has rolled out the Android and iPad versions in the
Year. Via phones or tablet computers, consumers can enjoy
shopping. track orders and preview new arrival products on
mobile DX anytime and anywhere, creating an effortless and
convenient user experience.
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B2B (Business-to-Business) e-commerce website

Due to the unsatisfactory performance of the Group’s
business-to-business ("B2B”) online trading platform for
suppliers and buyers operated with the domain name,
"MadeinChina.com”, and the keen competition in the B2B
e-commerce industry, the Group has closed down the
related business in the Year and made full impairment on the
related goodwill and other intangible assets. Currently, the
Group confinues to own the domain name of *MadeinChina.
com” for future use.

Professional IT contract and maintenance
services business

The Group’s experienced IT team, providing failor-made
professional IT solutions for government departments and
corporatfe clients, is one of the industry leading business
application solution providers in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and Singapore. To consolidate its leading position in the
industry, the Group completed the acquisition of e-Perfect IT
Limited during the Year, which, together with its subsidiary,
provides IT consultancy and corporate information solution
services. Benefitting from the growing demand of public and
private sectors for IT corporate solutions, the turnover of this
business segment recorded approximately 24.1% increment
during the Year.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to the second half of 2013, the global
economy is still shadowed by uncertainties. Despite the
challenging macro environment, the e-commerce industry
remains bright. According to Cisco IBSG, it is estimated that
global e-commerce will reach approximately USD1.4 trillion
in 2015 with the CAGR between 2011 and 2015 reaching
13.5%. However, in spite of the rapid increase in revenue, the
penetration rate of online retail remains low in the emerging
markets around the globe, creating enormous growth
potential for the e-commerce industry. Moreover, riding on
its advantage of comparatively low manufacturing costs,
China has become a core manufacturing hub for consumer
goods exported to global markets. According fo "2012-2013
China Cross-border E-commerce Market Report” published
by iResearch Consulting Group, the value of transactions
in China’s cross-border e-commerce market totaled RMB2.3
trillion in 2012, representing a year-on-year increase of
31.5%. Yet, in the total import and export frade of China, the
share of cross-border e-commerce transactions was 9.5%, a
relatively small figure. iResearch predicts that the value of
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China’s cross-border e-commerce transactions will continue
to grow rapidly and its share in China’s import and export
frade will increase accordingly. It is estimated to reach
RMB6.4 trillion in 2016 with 18.5% share, reflecting the huge
market potential. Furthermore, according the announcement
from the Ministry of Commerce of China in August 2013,
the Chinese government rolled out the "Opinions on
Implementing Policies to Support Retail and Export in Cross-
Border E-commerce”, of which six measures are suggested
to solve the problems that e-commerce export encounters in
areas such as customs, inspection and quarantine, taxation
and receipt and payment of foreign exchange. It is expected
that after the related policies are implemented, opportunities
will be created for Chinese foreign trade e-commerce
enterprises.

Regarding the e-commerce business, the Group will continue
to take the proactive and steadfast business development
strategy. By pushing forward the “localization” business
strategy, opfimizing the logistics system and shortening the
delivery time, the Group will provide customers services with
the best quality, further enhance customer loyalty of DX
and increase the number of return customers. In addition,
the Group will continue to expand the sales network by
implementing the strategy of "multi-languages, multi-
payment channels and regionalized precise marketing”. To
increase sales volume, the Group will continue to expand
and optimize its product portfolio. Furthermore, the Group
will strengthen its marketing promotion to enhance brand
recognition, increase its market share and attract more new
customers, maximizing the return for the shareholders of the
Group.

For the provision of professional IT confract and maintenance
services business, the Group is committed to designing cost-
effective and professional IT solutions for its corporate clients
to help sharpen the clients’ competitive edges.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Review

The business of the Group is composed of two business
segments, which are (a) e-commerce and provision of online
sales platform, and (b) provision of professional IT contract
and maintenance services.

For the year ended 30 June 2013 (the “Year”), the Group
generated a revenue of approximately HKS$1,404,117,000
(2012: HK$1,416,012,000), representing a decrease of
about HK$11,895,000, representing 0.8% over the same
period in 2012. During the first half of the Year, the revenue
of the e-commerce business had recorded a decrease.
The Group considered the drop was mainly inducted by
slack in customers’ spending sentiment as a result of the
unstable global economy. However, the performance of the
e-commerce business in the second half of the Year had
recorded an improvement due to gradual mitigation of the
European debt problems and slight improvement of global
economy. The overall drop in the revenue of the e-commerce
business for the year amounted to about HK$43,560,000 as
compared to previous year representing a decrease of 3.4%.
On the other hand, the business of provision of professional
IT confract and maintenance services had recorded a
moderate growth during the Year. In addition, the revenue
of the provision of professional IT confract and maintenance
services had recorded an increase of about HK$31,665,000,
as compared to last year, which was mainly due to the
contribution from the new acquired subsidiaries during the
Year, representing an increase of 24.1% which had partly
offset the drop in the e-commerce business.

The profit attributed to equity holders for the Year decreased
by about 71.8% from HKS$131,490,000 in last year to
HK$37,105,000 for the Year. The significant decrease was
mainly caused by:

(a) Decrease in gross profit margin

Drop in gross profit margin of the Group from 42.8%
to 39.7% mainly due to the keen competition in the
e-commerce business.

(b) Increase in the operating cost

In order to maintain the competitiveness of the
e-commerce business, the Group had incurred
additional staff cost, marketing expenses and other
administrative expenses during the year. The total
operating expenses for the Year were HK$475,882,000
(2012: 446,525,000), representing an increase of about
6.6% over the same period in 2012.
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(¢) Impairment Loss

Since the overall performance of the business-to-
business website kept on unsatisfactory, the Group had
terminated its operation during year. An aggregate
impairment loss of HK$19,260,000 and HK$10,436,000,
respectively on ifs related other intangible assets and
goodwill were made.

The income tax expenses for the Group of the Year were
HK$17,050,000 (2012: HK$32,185,000).

Capital Structure

The Group mainly finances its operations with internally
resources. The Group continued to exert stringent control
over treasury policies. The Company intends to finance
future operations, capital expenditure and other capital
requirement of the Group with the existing bank balance
available and banking facilities.

As at 30 June 2013, the inferest rate of banking facilities
was charged at the range of Benchmark Lending Rate of
the People’s Bank of China less 5% (2012: Hong Kong dollar
prime lending rate +1.5%).

As at 30 June 2013, the Group had no bank and other loans
(2012: Nil).

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Company had
repurchased and cancelled an aggregate of 219,084,000
ordinary shares.

Save as the above, the capital structure of the Company
had no material changes.

Material Acquisitions, Disposals and Significant
Investments

On 29 June 2012, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party,
involving a total consideration of HK$45,000,000 for the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of e-Perfect
IT Limited (“e-Perfect”), which was completed on 3 July
2012. e-Perfect together with its subsidiary, are engaged in
providing information and fechnology consultation services,
provision of corporate information solution architecture,
design and maintenance services and frading of computer
equipment and accessories. Details of this acquisition are
set out in an announcement of the Company dated 29 June
2012.

Pursuant tfo the sale and purchase agreement, the

consideration was subject to an adjustment downwards
mechanism if the audited consolidated profit after taxation

EPRO Limited S EHR A F

Review of Operations

E 3 e

(c) REBRE

Bﬂ%m%ﬁm%fﬁiﬁzzmiﬁ HoARE
CASRBECRFARARIEEES - BLEMAR

Eﬁ@ﬁﬁ/éﬁ‘&ﬁﬁ AELREEBER

19,260,000/ 7T }210,436,000/% 7T

NEEANEBHABIH A17,050,0008 T (==
— 4% : 32,185,000/ ) °

EXRER
AREFRUABERRERKRE - AEEHE
g“ﬂ%ﬁ“ﬂl%%ﬁﬁm%ﬂ?%ﬂ RRABHEABR AR
THEARRTREAAEBR ZRKER EEXX
Hj&ﬁﬁﬁ%f$ﬁfﬁﬁéﬁ°

R-ZZ-—=FX"A=+HB RITIMEZMEKH
BARRITERELENETZERE (ZF—=
F:RATREEMNEM EE) -
RZZE-—=FRA=+H0 AEBELTERITRHE
Mz ER(ZT——F &) -
RIE-—=FR"A=+tHIFER ARAFEHE

B }2 )% 35 & $£219,084,0000% & i AX A% 17 °

B Laish - ARR Z EARRET BEFERE

EXKB - HEEEREARE

RZBE—=—FRAZ+NB AEEE—-—FZBL
F=FEF VB E W 0 LA K {E45,000,000% T
BALEMEBRAR ([EE]) 22 BTRG -
WEER -_E——F+tA=ZHZ=MK- ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ
BRAIEBRIEMH é{ﬂﬂ}i@ﬁﬂfﬁk R D
BABRRT RERH JF&QEIXHE%L/\&EEEE
B 5% R B A o #ZEWA%W\ZK —E—=
FRAZTNABREZRAEA

REESEHE KEX-HETHAKBIMARR -
HWEBEMEMBARARBE T ——F+_H
St HUEFREZEBREABREANER



of e-Perfect together with its subsidiary for the year ended
31 December 2012 was less than HK$7,000,000, the
total consideration of the acquisition shall be adjusted
downwards. e-Perfect and its subsidiaries had achieved
the profit level for the said period and no adjustment in the
consideratfion was required accordingly. The Group had also
paid up all the consideration to the vendor during the Year.

Save as the above, the Company had no other significant
investments and material acquisitions or disposals for the
Year ended 30 June 2013.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the Year, the Group financed its operations by
internally generated cash flow and banking facilities
provided by banks.

As at 30 June 2013, the consolidated shareholders’ equity,
current assets and net current assets of the Group were
HK$220,194,000 (2012: HK$297,556,000), HK$283,181,000
(2012: HK$353,002,000) and HK$173,778,000 (2012:
HK$265,912,000) respectively.

In respect of the Group’'s total current assetfs of
HK$283,181,000 as at 30 June 2013 (2012: HK$353,002,000),
frade receivable (net of provision for doubtful debts)
accounted for 32.8% (2012: 19.9%) whilst pledged deposits,
cash and cash equivalents accounted for about 31.2%
(2012: 38.0%). As at 30 June 2013, the Group’s pledged
deposits amounted to HK$7,910,000 (2012: HKS 10,920,000)
and cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$80,376,000
(2012: HK$123,063,000) of which, US$20,000 (approximately
HK$156,000) in a Paypal account of the Group was frozen by
Paypal as the Group was involved in a litigation with details
stated in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 30 June 2013, the Group had no bank and other loans
(2012: Nil).

The Group’'s pledged deposits and cash and cash
equivalents were denominated in Australian dollars,
Canadian dollars, Hong Kong dollars, British pounds,
Renminbi, Singapore dollars and US dollars.

As at 30 June 2013, the Group had an aggregafte composite
banking facilities from banks of approximately RMB30 million
(2012: HK$156,000,000) which has not been utilised.

Gearing Ratio

As at 30 June 2013, the gearing ratio of the Group as a ratio
of total liabilities over total assets was 35.1% (2012: 24.1%).
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Foreign Currency Risk

The Group mainly generated revenue and incurred costs in
Australian dollars, Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, Singapore
dollars, Canadian dollars, British pounds and US dollars.

In accordance with the Group’s conservative treasury policy,
the Group did not enter any derivative product for hedging
during the year. Buf, the Group will keep on monitoring the
foreign currency risk and consider any tool for the hedging if
necessary.

As at 30 June 2013, the Group has no outstanding foreign
exchange confracts (2012: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities

The Company

As at 30 June 2013 and 2012, the Company had confingent
liabilities in respect of corporate unlimited guarantees for
banking facilities granted fo certain subsidiaries. At the end
of the reporting period, none of such facilities were utilised
by the subsidiaries (2012: Nil).

The Group
At 30 June 2013 and 2012, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

Charges on Assets

The banking facilities of the Group are secured by:

() corporate unlimited guarantees executed by the
Company; and

(i) the pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits
amounting to approximately HK$7,910,000 (2012:
HK$10,920,000) as at 30 June 2013.

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to
HK$80,376,000 (2012: HK$123,063,000) as at 30 June 2013 of
which, US$20,000 (approximately HK$156,000) in a Paypal
account of the Group was frozen by Paypal as the Group
was involved in a litigation, detail, of which are stated in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Deployment on Human Resources

As at 30 June 2013, the number of staff of the Group was
1,261 (2012: 1,269). Staff remuneration is reviewed once
a year, or as the management considers appropriate.
Changes in remuneration are based on a range of factors
including the Group’s performance, the competitiveness
of remuneration with the external market, and individual
employee’s performance during the Year. Employees were
paid at fixed remuneration with discretionary bonus and
benefits of medical insurance, mandatory provident fund,
share options and necessary training.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and of
the senior management of the Group are set out below.

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Shaokang, aged 48, is the co-chairman of the
Group, compliance officer and an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Huang is also a director of Virtus Foundation
Limited. He joined the Group in 2002 and is responsible for
overall strategy planning, management and development
of the Group. Mr. Huang has over 20 years of experience
in the management of various companies which invest
mainly on the IT and electronic industry. He has solid
experiences in tfrade and business in the People’s Republic
of China, Singapore and Hong Kong. Mr. Huang studied
in the Physics Department in the University of Hui Zhou, the
People’s Republic of China from 1983 to 1986. Mr. Huang is a
director of China Dynamic Enterprises Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. MENG Hu, aged 39, is the co-chairman of the Group
and an executive director of the Company. Mr. Meng
joined the Group in 2010. He is experienced in corporate
management and investment. Mr. Meng holds a bachelor’s
degree in electronic engineering from Tsinghua University
and a Master’'s Degree of Business Administrative from Peking
University. Mr. Meng is a director of ChangAn Investment
Holdings Il Limited and Wise Focus International Limited,
substantial shareholders of the Company.

Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong, aged 43, is the chief executive officer
of the Group and an executive director and member of
the Remuneration committee of the Company. He joined
the Group in 2000 and is responsible for development of
Group’s software fechnology and methodology. Mr. Chow
has over 20 years of experience in the IT industry and has
worked for key IT solution providers before joining the Group.
He graduated from Victoria University (formerly known as
Victoria University of Technology), Australia, with a Bachelor’s
degree and a Master’'s degree in Computer Science. He also
holds a Master’'s degree in Business Administration.

Mr. LUO Jia, aged 34, is an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Luo obtained his Bachelor of Science
(Medem Applied Physics) from Tsinghua University. He joined
the Group in 2011 and is responsible for marketing and
technological development of the e-commerce website of
the Group. Mr. Luo is an expert in the operation of internet
e-commerce and consumer electronic tfechnologies. Before
joining the Group, he has worked in senior management
positions for many major companies, and obtained plentiful
experience in software/hardware development and network
application areas.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Non-executive Directors

Mr. GAO Xiang, aged 35, is a non-executive director
of the Company. He joined the Company in 2011. Mr.
Gao is experienced in capital investment and corporate
management. He obtained both his Master of Economics
and Bachelor of Economics from Huazhong University of
Science and Technology, the PRC. Mr. Gao, is currently a
partner of IDG Capital Partners.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai, aged 50, is an independent non-
executive director and the chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Fong had obtained a bachelor’'s degree
in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and a master's degree in Business Administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Fong
has gained more than 20 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and finance area and services the private and
listed public companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. LI Guanbao, aged 33, is an independent non-
executive director and a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. He joined the Company in December 2011. Mr.
Li is a practicing lawyer in the PRC. He has been engaged
in the practice areas of private equity, mergers and
acquisitions, corporate restructuring and foreign investments.
Mr. Li obtained both his Master of Laws and Bachelor of
English from Tsinghua University, the PRC.

Mr. ZHU Zhi, aged 36, is an independent non-executive
director and a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Zhu completed a three-year professional
course in mobile communications at the Beijing University
of Posts and Telecommunications and he has obtained a
Master of Science in mobile communication systems from the
University of Surrey, United Kingdom. Mr. Zhu is experienced
in mobile communication and corporate management.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Mr. LIN Xiaofeng, aged 40, is an independent non-
executive director and a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Lin has obtained a Master of Business
Administration from the University of Southern Queensland,
Australia. Mr. Lin was a non-executive director of China
Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
750), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Lin has been an executive director of
AUPU Group Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 477),
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from August 2011 to present. Mr. Lin has extensive
experience in finance and venture capital investment.

Mr. LAM Kit Sun, aged 36, is an independent non-
executive director and a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Lam has obtained a Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accountfing from The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology. Mr. Lam is a fellow and a
practicing member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certificate
Public Accountants. He is also a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries
and a non-practising member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountant. From May 2006 fo August
2007, Mr. Lam was a qualified accountant and company
secretary of China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited
(Stock Code: 8270), a company whose shares are listed on
GEM. From August 2008 to July 2011, Mr. Lam was a non-
executive director of Ruifeng Petroleum Chemical Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 8096), the shares of which are listed
on GEM. Mr. Lam was an executive director of Kiu Hung
Energy Holdings Limited ("Kiu Hung”) (Stock Code: 381), a
company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, from October 2009 to July 2013 and he was
redesignated as a non-executive director of Kiu Hung on 1
August 2013. Mr. Lam is also company secretary and chief
financial officer of Universe Internatfional Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1046) since 1 August 2013 and was appointed
as its executive director with effect from 30 August 2013.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LEE Kin Fai, aged 40, is a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Master
Degree of Business Administration from the Manchester
Business School of University of Manchester, United Kingdom.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. HE Hua Guang, aged 47, is the general manager of
professional services of the Group. He joined the Group
in 1997 and is responsible for the development and
management of the Group’s provision of IT professional
services business. Mr. He has over 20 years of experience
in the IT field. He graduated from the Harbin Institute
of Technology, the People’s Republic of China, with a
Bachelor’'s degree in Mechanical & Electronic Engineering
and a Master’s degree in Engineering Management.

Mr. KOH Seng Loo, aged 55, joined the Group in 1991 and
is responsible for managing project delivery. Mr. Koh has
over 26 years of experience in the IT fields and has worked
for different enterprises covering consultancy, construction
and professional services business. He graduated from the
National University of Singapore with a Bachelor of Science
degree.

Mr. TAN Zhihui, aged 37, is the chief operating officer of the
E-commerce business of the Group. Mr. Tan graduated from
the Beijing Youth Management College. He joined the Group
in 2011 and is responsible for the Group’s general operation
and operational planning of e-commerce. Before joining
the Group, he has worked in senior management positions
for many major e-commerce companies, and has plentiful
experience in the fields of e-commerce, network information
and third-party payment.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The Group is principally engaged in E-commence
and provision of online sales platform and in provision of
professional IT confract and maintfenance services.

Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 30 June 2013 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group atf that
date are setf out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 44 to 143.

The directors did not recommend any payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2013 (2012: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited consolidated financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 144.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set outf in note 14 fo the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND
CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Details of movements in convertible notes, share capital and
share options of the Company during the Year are set out in
notes 27, 29 and 30 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association of the Company or the laws of
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Company
repurchased 219,084,000 shares of the Company on
the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of
HK$111,937,000 (excluding expenses) for the enhancement
of its net asset value and earnings per share. All repurchased
shares had been cancelled during the year ended 30 June
2013. Details of the repurchases of shares are summarised as
follows:

BE
ZERAEH
Total number
of ordinary
B E A 4 shares
Month of the repurchases repurchased
TR
"000 shares
—ZE——F+—A8 60,036
November 2012
—E—-——F+=A 19,372
December 2012
—E—=F=A 119,676
March 2013
—ET—=FNMA 20,000
April 2013
219,084

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company during the year ended 30 June
2013.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the Year are set out in note 31 fo the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s share premium account, in accordance with
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, is distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed fo be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. At 30 June 2013, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution are as follows:

(A3

Share premium account IR 15 % B Bk
REBEF

Retained profits

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 9% (2012: 8%) of the
total sales for the Year and the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 8% (2012: 7%).

Purchase from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 82% (2012: 90%) of the total purchases for
the Year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to approximately 38% (2012: 44%).

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders, which, to the best knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital, had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The board of directors of the Company (the "Board”) during
the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. HUANG Shaokang
Mr. MENG Hu
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong
Mr. LUO Jia
(appointed on 6 November 2012)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. ZHANG Zhen
(resigned on 14 June 2013)
Mr. GAO Xiang

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LU Wei

(resigned on 1 August 2013)
Mr. FONG Fuk Wai
Mr. LI Guanbao
Mr. MAK Yat Tang Anthony

(retired on 29 November 2012)
Mr. ZHU Zhi

(appointed on 1 August 2013)
Mr. LIN Xiaofeng

(appointed on 1 August 2013)
Mr. LAM Kit Sun

(appointed on 1 August 2013)

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. HUANG Shaokang, Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong,
Mr. GAO Xiang and Mr. LI Guanbao shall retire at the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 29
November 2013 (the "2013 AGM") and being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the said meeting.

DIRECTORS’' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 13 to
16 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the 2013 AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION

The directors’ remuneratfion are subject tfo shareholders’
approval at general meetings. Other emoluments are
recommended by the Company’s Remuneration Committee
and determined by the Board with reference to directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the result of the
Group.

DIRECTORS" INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as the related party tfransactions and connected
tfransactions disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements, no director had a material inferest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No confracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entfered info or existed during
the Year.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS UNDER PART
XV OF THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (THE "SFO")

A.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

As at 30 June 2013, the inferests and short positions
of the directors and chief executives of the Company
in the shares of the Company and ifs associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required fo be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as ofherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant fo the required standard of
dealings by directors of the Company as referred fo in
Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

1. Interests in shares of the Company
Long position/
Name of director Capacity Short position
EEpg af BE/ %R
Mr. HUANG Shaokang Beneficial owner Long
BOREE EnEAA e
Interest of controlled Long
corporotion 5
REHREES
Beneficial owner Short
ERfEAA *E
Mr. MENG Hu Interest of controlled Long
AREE corporations e
REHRAER
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong Beneficial owner Long
Bkris ExlEA )
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1. RERFIRG < #m
Number of Percentage
ordinary shares of issued
interested share capital*®
REREZ Notes HERT
LERHA Mg REBAL*
147,960,000 2.91%
773,966,942 Q)] 15.19%
Total: 921,926,942 18.10%

aft

200,000,000 3.93%
2,440,000,000 (2) 47.89%
2,880,000 0.06%



Notes:

1. These 773,966,942 shares of the Company
were held by China Dynamic Enterprises
Limited ("China Dynamic”), a corporation
wholly controlled by Mr. HUANG Shaokang.
Accordingly, Mr. Huang was deemed to
be interested in 773,966,942 shares of the
Company held by China Dynamic pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO.

2. These 2,440,000,000 shares of the Company
were held by ChangAn Investment Holdings
Il Limited ("ChangAn Investment”), a
corporation owned as to 63.79% by Wise Focus
International Limited ("Wise Focus”). Wise
Focus was owned as to 67.50% by Mr. MENG
Hu who is also its sole director. Accordingly,
Mr. Meng was deemed to be interested in
2,440,000,000 shares of the Company held by
ChangAn Investment pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

* The percentage represents the number of
ordinary shares interested divided by the
number of issued shares of the Company as
at 30 June 2013.

2. Interests in shares of the associated
corporation of the Company

No such interest was reported by the directors.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2013, none of
the directors nor the chief executives of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
fo Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the required standard of dealings by directors of the
Company as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2013, the following parties had interests
of 5% or more in the shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of substantial
shareholder
TERFER

ChangAn Investment

IDG-Accel China Growth

Fund GP Il Associates Ltd.

("IDG")
Mr. HO Chi Sing
HO Chi Sing%t &

Mr. ZHOU Quan
BAziHE

Wise Focus

Ms. YIP Chi Yu
gt

China Dynamic

Innopac Holdings Limited
(“Innopac”)

Mr. CHEN Ling Sonny

RERLE

Talent Gain Developments

Limited ("Talent Gain”)

Digital China (BVI) Limited

Digital China Holdings
Limited

Capacity
5t

Beneficial owner
ERBEAA

Interest of controlled
corporation
RREG 2 EB 2 xR

Interest of controlled
corporation
REES AR 2 ER

Inferest of controlled
corporation
WEEH 5B 2 ER

Interest of controlled
corporation
WREG Bz R

Inferest of spouse
[
Interest of spouse
s

Beneficial owner
BREEAA

Beneficial owner
ERBEAA

Interest of controlled
corporation
WREG Bz R

Beneficial owner

ExEAA

Interest of controlled
corporation

REEH 2 EE 2 BE

Interest of controlled
corporations
WEEH 5B 2 ER
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Number of ordinary
shares interested
RERRZEBREA
2,440,000,000

2,440,000,000

2,440,000,000

2,440,000,000

2,440,000,000

921,926,942

200,000,000

773,966,942

532,940,000

532,940,000

266,000,000

266,000,000

266,000,000

Notes
&

M &

M

Percentage of issued
share capital*
HERTRABA L
47.89%

47.89%

47.89%

47.89%

47.89%

18.10%

3.93%

15.19%

10.46%

10.46%

5.22%

5.22%

5.22%



Notes:

1. These 2,440,000,000 shares of the Company were
held by ChangAn Investment. ChangAn Investment
was controlled as to 33.86% by IDG, which was in turn
controlled by Mr. ZHOU Quan and Mr. HO Chi Sing.
Accordingly, IDG, Mr. ZHOU Quan and Mr. HO Chi Sing
were deemed to be inferested in 2,440,000,000 shares
held by ChangAn Investment pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

2. ChangAn Investment was controlled as to 63.79% by
Wise Focus which was controlled as to 67.50% by Mr.
MENG Hu. Accordingly, Wise Focus and Mr. Meng
were deemed to be interested in the shares held by
ChangAn Investment pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
Such interest was also disclosed as the interest of Mr.
Meng in the above paragraph under "Disclosure of
Interests under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance - A. Directors and Chief Executives”.

St Ms. YIP Chi Yu was deemed to be interested in
921,926,942 shares (long position) and 200,000,000
shares (short position) of the Company through
the inferests of her spouse, Mr. HUANG Shaokang,
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

4. These 773,966,942 shares of the Company were held
by China Dynamic, a corporation wholly controlled
by Mr. HUANG Shaokang. Such inferest was also
disclosed as the interest of Mr. Huang in the above
paragraph under “Disclosure of Interests under Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance - A. Directors
and Chief Executives”.

5. These 532,940,000 shares of the Company were held
by Innopac, a corporation wholly controlled by Mr.
CHEN Ling Sonny. Accordingly, Mr. Chen was deemed
to be interested in 532,940,000 shares of the Company
held by Innopac pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

6. These 266,000,000 shares of the Company were by
Talent Gain, a corporation wholly controlled by Digital
China (BVI) Limited. Digital China (BVI) Limited, was
in furn wholly controlled by Digital China Holdings
Limited. Accordingly, Digital China (BVI) Limited and
Digital China Holdings Limited were deemed to be
interested in 266,000,000 shares held by Talent Gain
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary
shares interested divided by the number of issued
shares of the Company as at 30 June 2013.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2013, so
far as is known to any director or chief executive of
the Company, no person, other than the directors
whose interests are set out in the above paragraph
under “Disclosure of Interests under Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance - A. Directors and
Chief Executives”, had registered an interest or a
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from those as disclosed in the above paragraph under
"Disclosure of Interests under Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance - A. Directors and Chief Executives”,
at no time during the Year were rights fo acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to any directors or their respective
spouse or children under 18 year or age, or were any rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of ifs
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable fo the
directors of the Company to acquire such rights in any other
body corporated.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by
the public as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the directors, initial management shareholders or
their respective associates of the Company has an interest
in a business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

LITIGATION

Details of the litigation of the Group are set out in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 27 November 2013 fto Friday, 29 November
2013 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer
of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2013 AGM to be held on
Friday, 29 November 2013, unregistered holders of shares
of the Company should ensure that all the share transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the branch share registrar of the
Company in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at 26th Floor,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 26
November 2013.
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AUDITORS

There have been no change of auditors in the past three
years. A resolutfion for the reappointment of Ascenda Cachet
CPA Limited as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the 2013 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

HUANG Shaokang
Co-Chairman

MENG Hu
Co-Chairman

Hong Kong
25 September 2013
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Corporate Governance Report

The directors present this Corporate Governance Report for
the year ended 30 June 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance in maintaining its corporate transparency and
accountability. The Board sets appropriate policies and
implements corporate governance practices appropriate to
the conduct and growth of the Group’s business.

The Board considers that for the period from 1 July 2012 to
the date of this annual report, the Company has applied
the principles and complied with the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules, except
for the code provision A.6.7. Key corporate governance
principles and practices of the Company as well as the
details of the foregoing deviations are summarised below.

A. THE BOARD

ATl. Responsibilities and Delegation

The overall management and control of the Company’s
business are vested in ifs Board. The Board is responsible
for establishing policies, strategies and plans, providing
leadership in the attainment of the objective of
creafing value to shareholders, and on behalf of the
shareholders, overseeing the Company’s financial
performance. All directors carry out their duties in
good faith and in compliaonce with the standards
of applicable laws and regulations, take decisions
objectively and acts in the interests of the Company
and ifs shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters
of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material
fransactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of inferests), financial information, appointment of
directors and otfher significant financial and operational
maftters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of
the Company Secretary and senior management,
with a view fo ensuring that Board procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
Each director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expenses, upon reasonable request made
to the Board.
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The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are led by the Chief
Executive Officer and senior management of the
Company. The delegated functions and work tasks are

A2.

periodically reviewed. Approval has fo be obtained from
the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by the foregoing officers and senior management.

Board Composition
As at 30 June 2013, the Board comprised the following

A2.

MEEEatE-

EEgCEm

RIE—=FRA=TRH EF2ATIE

directors: Xl

Executive directors: HITESE :

Mr. HUANG Shaokang  (Chairman of the Board) ZEOREE (EESE/E)

Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong  (Chief Executive Officer and Member K- (BEE#HITELR
of the Remuneration Committee) FWESEEHKE)

Mr. MENG Hu mREA

Mr. LUO Jia BmiHE

Non-executive director: HHTEE -

Mr. GAO Xiang SE2b S

Independent non-executive directors: HIHNTESE -

Mr. LU Wei (Member of the Audit Committee, BELAE (FEZRE

Remuneration Committee FHES &
and Nomination Committee) =
(Chairman of the Audit Committee, TiEELRLE (FERZEE
Remuneration Committee and FHES &R
Nomination Committee) 2+
(Member of the Audit Committee, FERELE (FERZEE
Remuneration Committee and FHES &
Nomination Committee) =

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai

Mr. LI Guanbao

Subsequent to the year ended 30 June 2013, the

REBE_ZT—=F "A=tHILFER &
composition of the Board has the following changes:- :

FEZEAREBETINE
(i) Mr. MENG Hu has been appointed as the Co- () HBRAEEEZTR/RARZEEERE:
Chairman of the Company;

(i) Mr. LU Wei has resigned as an independent non- (i) BELEEBHEBUIFENTES 8
executive director and ceased to be a member THARALNREREZES FMES
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee CRIBEEEEHE + &
and Nomination Committee of the Company; and

(iiiy Mr. ZHU Zhi, Mr. LIN Xiaofeng and Mr. LAM Kit (i) REFLA  WBEELERMREFEAE

Sun have been appointed as independent non-
executive directors and members of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company.

EEZERARAIZBIUNFRITES
NEEZEZE® FHEESRES

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 & 3R




A3.

Corporate Governance Report

For the period from 1 July 2012 to the date of this annual
report, the Board has met the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules 5.05 and 5.05A of having at least three
independent non-executive directors (representing at
least one third of the Board) with one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting
and related financial management expertise.

All directors have brought a wide range of valuable
business expertise, experiences and professionalism
to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Through active participation in Board meetings, taking
the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict
of interests and serving on Board committees, all
independent non-executive directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company
are set out under "Directors’ and Senior Management'’s
Biographies” in this annual report. None of the members
of the Board is related to one another.

The Company has received a written annual
confirmation from each independent non-executive
director of his independence pursuant fo the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive directors to
be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are carried out by
different individuals.

During the year under review, the Chairman of the Board
is Mr. HUANG Shaokang, who provides leadership for the
Board and is responsible for the effective functioning
and leadership of the Board. With the support of the
senior management, the Chairman is also responsible
for ensuring that the directors receive, in a timely
manner, adequate, accurate, clear, complete and
reliable information and appropriate briefing on issues
arising at the Board meetings, and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed in a fimely manner.

The Chief Executive Officer is Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong, who

focuses on the Company’s business development and
daily management and operations generally.
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Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

Each of the non-executive directors of the Company
is appointed for a specific term and is subject to
retirement by rotation once every three years. Mr. FONG
Fuk Wai is appointed for a term of 2 years whereas the
other non-executive director and independent non-
executive directors are appointed for 1 year.

According to the Company’s Arficles of Association,
all directors of the Company are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and any
new director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as
an additional to the Board shall submit himself/herself
for re-election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment. Accordingly, Mr. HUANG
Shaokang, Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong, Mr. GAO Xiang and
Mr. LI Guanbao shall retire by rotation at the 2013 AGM
pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association. All
the above four retiring directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the 2013 AGM. The Board
and the Nomination Committee recommended their re-
appointment. The Company’s circular, sent together
with this annual report, contains detailed information
of the above directors as required by the GEM Listing
Rules.

Training and Continuous Professional
Development of Directors

All directors of the Company receive comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on appointment, so as to
ensure understanding of the business and operations of
the Group and directors’ responsibilities and obligations
under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

Directors of the Company are continually updated on
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime,
and the business and market changes fo facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities and obligations
under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. Confinuing briefings and professional
development for directors will be arranged as necessary.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Company
(i) has organized briefings conducted by professional
firm for its directors namely, Mr. HUANG Shaokang, Mr.
MENG Hu, Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong, Mr. LUO Jia, Mr. ZHANG
Zhen, Mr. GAO Xiang and Mr. FONG Fuk Wai, on update
on the GEM Listing Rules amendments; and (ii) has
provided reading materials on regulatory update to all
the directors for their reference and studying.
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A6. Directors’ Attendance Records A6.EEC HFERTE
The atftendance records of each director at the Board ZBEELEARAREE-_ZTE—=ZF,A8
and Board committee meetings and the annual general T HLEFEROTESSEBRESEE
meeting of the Company held during the year ended 30 eeAMRREAFAENHEILHEINNEHLT

June 2013 are set out below:

Attendance/Number of meetings

HER/EEYUE Annual

Audit  Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEnE Exg EREEE FMzEE REZEE RRBFAE
Executive directors:
HiTEF
Mr. HUANG Shaokang 3/9 - - - VAl
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong 9/9 - 11 - /1
B EE
Mr. MENG Hu 6/9 S - = /1
RREEE
Mr. LUO Jia (Nofe 1) 4/6 = - N 0/1
BEEEMAI)
Non-executive directors:
HHITEE
Mr. ZHANG Zhen (Note 2) 2/9 - - - 0/1
RERE(HH2)
Mr. GAO Xiang 2/9 - - - 0/1
BAKE
Independent non-executive directors.
BUFHTEE
Mr. LU Wei 5/9 2/4 11 11 0/1
BlELE
Mr. FONG Fuk Wai 9/9 4/4 11 /1 11
TRERE
Mr. LI Guanbao 8/9 4/4 171 171 0/1
FEREE
Mr. MAK Yat Tang Anthony (Nofe 3) 474 2/2 11 11 0/1
EHEEE M)
Notes: et -

(1) Mr. LUO Jia was appointed as a director of the Company (1) BEHZLEER-T-—F+—-ANHEZERAR
on 6 November 2012. A total of 6 Board meetings were RIZEFE EREZEEHEE_T—=F A=+
held from the date of his appointment to 30 June 2013. H ERTEHOREFEEH -

(2) Mr. ZHANG Zhen resigned as a director of the Company on  (2) REAER -F-—=FXAtHHFEARAE

14 June 2013. A total of 9 Board meetings were held from 1 T BT -FtA-HRZEHHIBEY BF
July 2012 to the date of his resignation. TAaHIREFTEEE -

(3) Mr. MAK Yat Tang Anthony refired as a director of the (3) ZEHBELAR-_T-——F+—-A-FTNHBE7TZ
Company at the conclusion of the Company’s annual ARARRBAFAGERTREARAESE - 1
general meeting held on 29 November 2012. Before his HRMER  BERITAREBEETEEH  2REREES
retirement, 4 Board meetings, 2 Audit Committee meetings, eR IRFHEEEEE IRREEZEEEH
1 Remuneration Committee meeting, 1 Nomination RIRBRFBFERE -

Committee meeting and 1 annual general meeting were
held.
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A7. Required Standard of Dealings

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ dealings in the Company’s
securities (the "Own Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the "Required
Standard of Dealings”). Specific enquiry has been
made of the Company’s directors and all of them have
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Required Standard of Dealings
and the Own Code throughout the year ended 30 June
2013.

The Company has also established written guidelines no
less exacting than the Required Standard of Dealings
(the "Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant
Employees”) for securifies transactions by employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information of the Company. No incident of
non-compliance of the Code for Securities Transactions
by Relevant Employees by the employees was nofed by
the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE
FUNCTIONS

The Board has three Board committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
have been established with defined written terms of
reference, which are posted on the Company’s website
‘www.epro.com.hk” and on the GEM website “www.
hkgem.com”. All the Board committees should report to
the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.
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BT1. Remuneration Committee

As at 30 June 2013, the Remuneration Committee
comprised a total of four members, being three
independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely Mr. FONG Fuk Wai (Chairman), Mr. LU Wei
and Mr. LI Guanbao, and one executive director of
the Company, namely, Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong. On 1
August 2013, (i) Mr. LU Wei ceased to be a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company and (ii)
Mr. ZHU Zhi, Mr. LIN Xiaofeng and Mr. LAM Kit Sun were
appointed as members of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. The majority of the Remuneration
Committee members are independent non-executive
directors.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendations to the
Board on the Company’'s remuneration policy and
structure and the remuneration packages of directors
and members of senior management (i.e. the model
described in the code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG
Code is adopted). The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneratfion will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well
as market practice and conditions.

During the year under review, the Remuneration
Committee has generally reviewed the remuneration
policy and structure of the Company and reviewed
the remuneration package of directors and senior
management of the Company.

The attendance records of each Committee member
at the Remuneration Committee meeting held during
the year ended 30 June 2013 are set out in section A6
above.
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L2 Ashe S =+

TEERRE
Pursuant fo code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the BEEXERTAZFAIEXBI.5 RE
annual remuneration of the members of the senior ET—=FXNAZ=THLFE =2HEE
management by band for the year ended 30 June 2013 BB ZEESHMARTEHWOT :
is seft out below:
Remuneration band (HK$) Number of individual
AR (B x) AH
Nil - 500,000 = - 500,000 2
500,001 - 1,000,000 500,001 - 1,000,000 2

4

Details of the remuneration of each director of the RARRZEERHE-ZT—=FA=1H
Company for the year ended 30 June 2013 are set EFEZHMFBEHENARER 2GSV B®
out in Nofe 8 to the consolidated financial statements KT8 ©
contained in this annual report.
Audit Committee B2. B ZES
As at 30 June 2013, the Audit Committee comprised R-ZE—=F A=+H #BEXZ8gHs
a total of three members, namely Mr. FONG Fuk Wai ZEKE  BEAFBRELEE(ER)  BEX
(Chairman), Mr. LU Wei and Mr. LI Guanbao, all of ERFBREE  BEHRARAE IR
whom are independent non-executive directors of the TEF BERZESXIRTEBAERLT
Company. The Chairman of the Audit Committee also MAIES 28I EZ G BGT R BEIR
possesses the appropriate accounting and financial HEHNF -NZTE—Z=F/N\R—B (OBE
management expertise as required under Rule 5.28 of EETBRARABEZREZEGKE R(D)K
the GEM Listing Rules. On 1 August 2013, (i) Mr. LU Wei HRE MBELERMET TECERET
ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee of the RAEARAEZLZEEKE - HMEEREZES
Company and (i) Mr. ZHU Zhi, Mr. LIN Xiaofeng and Mr. KERARBREINEZBEMOAEEA -
LAM Kit Sun were appoinfed as members of the Audit
Committee of the Company. None of the members
of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditors.
The main duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing ERZEG I EBEAENAEE 2B
the financial information and reports of the Group BERRE - WRAREE 2 5SS HE
and considering any significant or unusual items HEMAEESRETMNEAXNISEEE
raised by the financial officers of the Group or external AT E R A aT BN X 8D 2 B R R H
auditors before submission to the Board; reviewing ZREGH WRESSIREEEES kR
the relationship with and the terms of appointment SARRZMBRESE - NEPEIEHIE &
of the external auditors and making the relevant [ B & IR E o
recommendation to the Board; and reviewing the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system.
During the year under review, the Audit Committee REEFEN  BEZZEGEREHEBEE_-ZT
has reviewed the financial statements, results —Z—FXA=FTHLFE BEZT—=F
announcements and reports for the year ended 30 NA=+RHRE=EA BEZZT——-F+=
June 2012, for the three months ended 30 September A=+—HEANEARBE=ZZ—=F=A8
2012, for the six months ended 31 December 2012 =St-—HLENMEAAZHB®RE  XERER
and for the nine months ended 31 March 2013; the HRE MBERRREHAREF  EEEHRAR
financial reporting and compliance procedures; the AN EEREREERN BT Z2HRE
report from the management on the Company’s internal EERAIEEECTEETAREBIZR
control and risk management review and process; BE o RE BB SN EBAZ ERAD o

the arrangements for employees to raise concerns
about possible improprieties; and considered the re-
appointment of external auditors.
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The external auditors have attended two of the Audit
Committee meetings held during the year ended 30
June 2013, without the presence of executive directors,
to discuss with the Audit Committee on issues arising
from the audit and financial reporting matters.

The attendance records of each Committee member
at the Audit Committee meetings held during the year
ended 30 June 2013 are set out in section Aé above.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee regarding the appointment of external
auditors.

Nomination Committee

As at 30 June 2013, the Nomination Committee
comprised a total of three members, namely Mr. FONG
Fuk Wai (Chairman), Mr. LU Wei and Mr. LI Guanbao,
all of whom are independent non-executive directors of
the Company. On 1 August 2013, (i) Mr. LU Wei ceased
tfo be a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company and (i) Mr. ZHU Zhi, Mr. LIN Xiaofeng and
Mr. LAM Kit Sun were appointed as members of the
Nomination Committee of the Company.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee include reviewing the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
recommending any changes to the Board; identifying
qualified and suitable individuals to become Board
members and selecting and making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships; assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors; and making
recommendations tfo the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors in
particular, the Chairman and the Chief Executive of the
Company.

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company,
the Nomination Committee may make reference fo
certain criteria such as the Company’s needs, integrity,
experience, skills, professional knowledge and the
amount of time and effort that a candidate will devote
to carry his/her duties and responsibilities. External
recruitment professionals might be engaged to carry out
selection process when necessary.
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During the year under review, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board to ensure that it has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate
tfo the requirements for the business of the Group;
recommended the re-election of the retiring directors
standing for re-election at the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 29 November 2012; considered
and made recommendation to the Board on the
appointment of Mr. LUO Jia as an executive director;
and assessment of the independence of all the
Company’s independent non-executive directors.

The attendance records of each Committee member
at the Nomination Commifttee meeting held during
the year ended 30 June 2013 are set out in section A6
above.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set outf in the code provision D.3.1
of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed and monitored the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, the
fraining and contfinuous professional development of
directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Required Standard of Dealings and the Code for
Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees, and
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities
for preparing the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 30 June 2013.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of quarterly,
interim and annual reportfs, price sensitive
announcements and other disclosures required under
the GEM Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.
The management has provided sufficient explanation
and information to the Board as necessary to enable the
Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
informatfion and position of the Group put forward to the
Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to confinue as a going concern,
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate
internal control system and for reviewing the
effectiveness of such system on an annual basis. The
senior management reviews and evaluates the control
process, monitors any risk factors on a regular basis and
reports on any findings and measures to address the
variances and identified risks.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2013 is
set out in the section headed “Independent Auditors’
Report” in this annual report.

The fees paid/payable to Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited,
the Company’s external audiftors, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 30
June 2013 are analyzed below:

Type of services provided by the external auditors
SMERBE TR REESR

Audit services - audit fee for the year ended
30 June 2013

Non-audit services - tax service fee, fee relating
to the proposed fransfer of listing from GEM
to main board of the Stock Exchange and
due diligence review fee

TOTAL:

’EPRO Limited 2 EEFR A F
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Fees paid/payable (HK$)

Bt ENEA(ER)
BEZRB-—#H#EZE_T—=F
NAZTTHLEFEZEZE 750,000
EEZRE-FHIEREE
FHERZ R ERERE
GRATERLETZEBRR
EBRESER 414,400
Et 1,164,400
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication
with shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and investors’ understanding of the Group’s
business performance and strategies. The Group also
recognizes the importance of transparent and tfimely
disclosure of corporate information, which enables
shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decision.

The Company maintains a website at www.epro.com.hk
as a communication platform with shareholders and
investors, where the Group’s business developments and
operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public
access. Shareholders and investors may send wriften
enquiries or requests to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Room 1501, 15/F, Tung Hip
Commercial Building, 244-248 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong.

Inquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner.

Besides, shareholders’ meetings provide an opportunity
for communication between the Board and the
shareholders. Board members and appropriate senior
staff of the Group are available at the meeting to
answer any questions raised by shareholders.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates that
independent non-executive directors and other non-
executive directors should attend general meetings. Due
to engage in other commitments, certain independent
non-executive directors and non-executive directors
did not aftend the Company’s annual general meeting
held on 29 November 2012 and extraordinary general
meeting held on 6 September 2013.
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Corporate Governance Report

G. SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings

on each substantial issue,

including the election of

individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and
voting. The Company’s shareholders may convene an
extraordinary general meeting or put forward proposals
at shareholders’ meetings as follows:

M

&y

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company may request the Board
fo convene an extraordinary general meeting
pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of
Association by sending a written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The
objects of the meeting must be stated in the written
requisifion.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person ofther
than a retiring director for election as a director of
the Company at a general meeting, pursuant fo
Arficle 88 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
the shareholder (other than the person to be
proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting shall send a written notice, duly
signed by the shareholder, of his/her intention
fo propose such person for election and also a
notice signed by the person to be proposed of
his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong, or the office of the
Company’s branch share registrar. The period for
lodgement of such notices shall commence on the
day after the dispatch of the notice of such general
meeting and end 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

EPRO Limited S EHR A F
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Corporate Governance Report

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must provide
their full name, contact details and identification, in the
originally signed written requisition, notice or statement
(as the case may be), in order to give effect thereto.
Information of shareholder(s) may be disclosed as
required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has
not made any significant changes to the Articles of
Association. An up-to-date version of the Articles of
Association is available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. Shareholders may refer to the
Articles of Association for further details of the rights of
shareholders.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings of
listed issuers shall be voted by poll pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules. The poll voting results shall be posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
after each shareholders’ meeting.

TEERHRE

AELERE RRAZXEARZEZERR
RoBEXRBHEBRME) 2RMF B &
HIRHERE 225  BEFBERFOER
TREM - BREMAIEREBEEREAEM T
LA R ©

MREEFEAR  ARARARBHESEMANE
HERMEAREN - BRRAAZ ZHRAZE
RRF R PrAuE - BRARKENZE %
FHIE - RRA2MERMA -

RIFAIZER ETRA - AR EWETAK
RRE LIREZABRANRETAETE
R RBRARZBERBENERR ARG LA
R RARREE ETE -

On behalf of the Board REREEFE

HUANG Shaokang MENG Hu ey e
Co-Chairman Co-Chairman ELE =R
Hong Kong 5

25 September 2013 —ZE-=FhA=+HAA
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Independent Auditors’ Report

|
Ascenda CACFEC

| RIE 7%

To the shareholders of EPRO Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
EPRO Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the "Group”) set out on pages 44 to 143, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position
as at 30 June 2013, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
tfrue and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Instfitute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability fo
any ofher person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by HKICPA. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures fo obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due fo fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
infernal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentafion of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
tfrue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
the Group as at 30 June 2013 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Yuk Tong
Practising Certificate Number P03723

Hong Kong
25 September 2013

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F &

RVE7E GRS

ZEM2Z2EE @
ERIESRATREFUNERESBESVBRE
B cEAEEEH  ERRE TETEZER
BURR 2 U002 H B - BIET R RS2
MERGETBRRTFEERERRAM AR -
EFGZERRE  ZHMEREZABE
NN EREMERREEMAFHES -
URetEE 2B %ERF  BUIFEABE AR 2RI
BB RER BERIENEREIEBES
TRzt 2@ RATEL 2 25t A5
ZEEM URTEBGAVBRRZIERENR
ﬁc

EERE EEMRGCERERR RO ES I
REECEVERRHEER -

=z
=

EERR UBRRECBREBETEGAVBHRSE
AEEMATHRR BEAFE EXER_-F
—ZERNAZTHAZBBERRE EEEBEZ
BrFEZRMNERESRE YD ERFEAF
GOz HBEREZERE -

XRESBHABHHERAT
RS

REX
HEFERIFP03723

BB
—E-—=FhA=Z+HEH



REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Impairment of goodwill

Impairment of other intangible assets

Finance costs

Share of profits and losses of
associates

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable fo:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
- Basic

- Diluted

Consolidated Income Statement

= = 32
:%/T (=] E\ﬁﬁ%‘%
Year ended 30 June 2013 HHE=ZT—=F R A=F+HILEFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—CF
Notes HK$' 000 HK$' 000
Wiz FTHEx FAEL
WA 4.5 1,404,117 1,416,012
& RER K 6 (846,180) (809,528)
EH 557,937 606,484
Hp A R 5 1,581 4,008
WERSHRA (342,082) (371,838)
THER (133,800) (74,687)
R 15 (10,436) .
HipEREERME 16 (19.260) -
REARKA 7 (24) (30)
DEHE AR Z BT R
58 (40) 5
BB ATRF 6 53,876 163,942
R B 10 (17,050) (32,185)
KEEEF 36,826 131,757
W& 7L
E/NEIE FEN 37,105 131,490
SEIR AR (279) 267
36,826 131,757
RATREERESZHEA
EEz8RAR
13
—-EX 0.71 centi#l 2.45 centsi&
—#E N/ATRE B 2.44 centsiE{l
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meZHERER

Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZZT—=F R NA=1+HILFE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for
the year, net of tax:
Reclassification adjustments
for losses included in the
consolidated income
statement
- Loss on disposal
(note 19)
Exchange difference arising on
franslation of foreign operations

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

’ ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F &

2013 2012
—EB—=Ff —E—F
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
FHET FHET
NEEFERF 36,826 131,757
AEEEMEERT
(MBBiE) -
FFAGABEZER
EHNOBRAE
—HEEE
(FF3E19)
- (286)
BIRIE N E TS
EEZESZET (1.616) (282)
rEEZEKE
g 35,210 131,189
JEfh 2 s 88
Vi N/NEIEZ SN 35,465 130,902
IR RS (255) 287
35,210 131,189




NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Interests in associates
Available-for-sales investment

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Deposits received in advance
Deferred revenue

Due to associates

Tax payables

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Convertible notes

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Issued capital

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

FRBEE

ME - BE MR
[k
HipmpEE
REERA 2 s
AHHERE

FERBDEELE

st

&Y = 5 BR 3K
BNRIE  RER
Ho At JE YRR
BATEAABSEZ
EHRRRERE
E 7R
ReRReFEEERB

MBEELR
REBEE
eS8 5 IR

Hb N FRIARE AR
BWZE

i 1
REG&E N R Z A
T4 755 2 455

MR BEERE
RBEEFE
EERBERRBAE
FRBAE
AR R
EEHBAAR
FnBEERE

BEERME
B &
RRATHEAARIEER

BETRA
&

SEIE R
ERAE

HUANG Shaokang
B2OE
Director

EFE

EPRO Limited S EHR A F

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ma MR R

30June 2013 —E—=F~A=+H
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$” 000
B 7% FExT FAT
14 8,117 5,276
15 15,844 10,436
16 31,723 23,160
18 432 472
19 - -
56,116 39,344
20 42 2
21 92,762 70,419
22 99.506 146,245
23 2,585 2,353
24 7,910 10,920
24 80,376 123,063
283,181 353,002
25 2,932 6,642
40,696 23,746
26 20,919 24,885
1,587 317
18 - 294
43,269 31,206
109,403 87,090
173,778 265,912
229,894 305,256
27 - -
28 9,700 7,700
9,700 7,700
220,194 297,556
29 50,945 53,136
167,717 242,633
218,662 295,769
1,532 1,787
220,194 297.556
MENG Hu
=R
Director
EF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 30 June 2013

RERREHR

Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZZT—=F R NA=1+HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FREREESARE
Available-
fquity ~ forsales
component of invesiment  Copital  Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued Share  Copital ~ Option convertible revaluation redemption fluctuation  Retained final confrolling Tofal
capital  premium  reseve  reserve notes  reseve  reseve  reseve  profits  dividends Tolol inferests  equity
THHERE  RERE
BRfRA REEEE EARE BRERE  RaBH EHEzRE fE ETBEE RE2A ERASRE ot FERER  EREE
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'O0D  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'0O0D  HKS'000  HKS'000
i TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR T TR Thn

Bolance ot 1 July 2012 5313 109913 (17.974) 1335 (7.564) 156923 - 5760 1781 297556
Total comprehensive
income for the year (1,640) 37,106 - 35469 (265 35210
Repurchose and
cancellafion of shares
(nofe 29(c)(ih) @191)  (109913) 29 - (2559 - (112512) - (11251)
A 30 June 2013 #5-c%

nAZTH 50945 S (1904} - - 3520 (9.204)° 191,369° - Nge2 182 2019

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves
of HK$167,717,000 (2012: HK$242,633,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REREEEER

Year ended 30 June 2013 HHE=ZT—=F R A=F+HILEFE

Year ended 30 June 2012
Attibufable fo owners of the Company
FREREREARE
Available-

Issued

Share

Equity

for-sales

component of investment
Capital ~ Option convertible revaluation redempfion fluctuafion  Refained

Capital  Exchonge

Proposed
final

Non-
confrolling

Tofal

capital  premium  reseve  reserve notes  reserve  reseve  resenve
TEERE  RaEE

profits ~ dividends Tolol inferests  equity

BEfRA REEEE E4RE BRERE  RaBh EHEzRE fE PETEEE RE2A ERASRE ot FERER  EREE

HKSOD  HKS'O0D  HKS'00D  HKS'O00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

Tan TR TR TR TR Th T TR TR TR T TR Thn
Balonce of 1 July 2011 RZ5--F YA LT A (VAT R VX 1,340 2 - (1) B 62630 36080 1500 36230

th-BEE

Tofol comprehensive fER2
income for the year % 0 > = > > (28) g 0) 131490 - 130002 A% 1818
Bercke of share opfions~~~ {7RERE N S H)| - - - - - -1 S )
Issue of shares on AR R
conversion of
converfible nofes 231960 (1.360) 10597 10597
Repurchose ond
cancellafion of shares
(noe 29(¢)(1) (1335 (145067) 138 - (13%) (146,402) (146,402)
Payment of 2011 final
dividends (61850 (61.854) (61.850)
Adjustment for 2011 final
dividends (note (a)) ) (T16)
A 30 June 2012

530% 109918 (17974 1385 (754 19690 295,769 1767 29755
Note: B &%

(a) The adjustment for 2011 final dividends was due to the (a) ZZT——FARBREZABRIERE-T——F
repurchase and cancellation of 67,500,000 ordinary shares of RHA AR B 508k B A 2 A1 B BE & 5 $567,500,0000%
the Company prior to the record date of the 2011 final dividends RAREBRRGD  HUHZEROHAE=ZHUIE
which were not ranked for dividend payment. K8 °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
%/TAIE M7 /)Ib%i&%‘%

Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZZT—=F R NA=1+HILFE

2013 2012
—8—= —E——fF
Notes HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
Btk FTHET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBEZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 75 AT & R 53,876 163,942
Adjustments for: FEE -
Finance costs BN 7 24 30
Interest income FERA 5,6 (108) (87)
Dividend income from equity ?ﬁ@i@iﬂ\%ﬁéz
investments at fair value FHRRREREZ
through profit or loss ’%XE’]H 5.6 (46) (28)
Fair value gain on equity Tﬂ’&?%ﬁ?\%@ 57
investments af fair value FHRAIRE
through profit or loss RTFERT 5,6 (232) (424)
Gain on disposal of equity HERATEN AER
investments at fair value through ZEMRATRIRERE
profit or loss Z B 5,6 69) 671)
Depreciation e 14 3,021 2,992
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME  BE R
plant and equipment Rtz BB (BF) 5614 187 (1,085)
Reversal of impairment of trade BOoREKES
receivables REORE 5.6 - (296)
Impairment of goodwill SR 15 10,436 -
Impairment of other intangible assets HmEEEERE 16 19,260 -
Impairment of trade receivables EWE 5 EFRE 21 173 -
Write-back of trade payables B RE 1 BR R 5,6 - (118)
Write-back of other payables and accruals B E fih & 1 B8R 20 &
FEiHE & 56 - (832)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sales HERHEREEE
investments 19 - 3,024
Share of losses/ (profits) of associates DGR ERE 2
&8 (&F) 40 (5)
86,562 166,442
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE MmO (40) 1
(Increase)/decrease in frade receivables FEWE SR (Em) R (20,324) 3,901
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TBRIE - me RHEA
deposits and other receivables FEWTRIER D (38 0) 47,044 (138,477)
Decrease in equity investments at fair value }§®¥E§+J\T§¥Ziﬁ/&ﬁj
through profit and loss RERER D 260 -
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables JT%TH?’?%EE, WA (3.710) 3,817
Increase in other payables ﬁf‘@ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬂiﬁﬁ%
and accruals o 14,022 7.623
(Decrease)/increase in deposits received IR S (R ) /10
in advance (3.966) 24,885
Decrease in deferred revenue EEN R (593) (220)
Cash generated from operations KEEBMERS 119,255 67,972
Hong Kong profits tax BEMEH (1.493) -
Overseas taxes paid EAEINRIE (909) a0)
Net cash flows from KEEBREMEFE
operating activities 116,853 67,962
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meReREHREK

Year ended 30 June 2013 HHE=ZT—=F R A=F+HILEFE

2013 2012
—EBE-=F —E——F
Notes HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
B &E FER FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B F B 108 87
Purchases of items of property, BEWE BER
plant and equipment REZIEE (4,883) (2,436)
Acquisition of other intangible assets BEHEMEEEE 16 - (3.900)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME  BE K
plant and equipment BEZIEE 14 205 52,391
Proceeds from disposal of equity investments &L A FEF AEZE
at fair value through profit or loss Z FHRARERE
ZIEH 69 671
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sales HEAHERE 7 IER
investment 19 - 47,702
Dividend received B AR B 46 28
Net cash and cash equivalent outflow WHEHRBRRZ
upon acquisition of subsidiaries RBeZERLFE 32 (43,460) (25,911)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits BEATETRL () 3,010 (7.396)
Net cash flows (used in)/from REEFH RS
investing activities (X)) /Fiis3%8 (44,905) 61,236
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METBHZBRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid ERFE (24) -
Proceeds from issue of shares BATREPTISRIE - 1,686
Repurchase of shares ] B8 A% 17 BT A 2 5k 8 29¢ (112 572) (146,402)
(Decrease)/increase in the amount REg &N R) 2 A O )
due to associate /3 (294) 294
Dividends paid g4I g ) 31b - (61,854)
Net cash flows used in MEETH REITH
financing activities FEE (112,890) (206,276)
NET DECREASE IN CASH HekBRELEHEER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W RE (40,942) (77,078)
Cash and cash equivalents at FoRe kB
beginning of year ZEER 123,063 200,484
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNER M) 2 HE
changes, net R (1.745) (343)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESREELZEEER
AT END OF YEAR 80,376 123,063
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH HeRBREEEER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS wEr o
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHET 80,376 123,063

’EPRO Limited 2 EEFR A F



Statement of Financial Position

BAFEARR AR

30June 2013 —E—=FA=TH

2013 2012
—E-=F o ies
Notes HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
P & FHxT F& T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR RZEH
and a controlled special BHRENQARZERE
purpose entity 17 25,360 25,360
Total non-current assets ERMEEERTE 25,360 25,360
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries and a JEWM B AR RZESR%E B
controlled special purpose entity YNSIE S| 17 153,083 141,661
Prepayments, deposits and BRRIE  EHek
other receivables H & W RIB 22 281 99
Pledged deposits [ R e 24 - -
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESEBEEE 24 135 3,638
Total current assets MENEERE 153,499 145,398
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Due to a subsidiary FET B A A 1,276 -
Other payables and accruals Hith e sIEREBE 1,451 926
Total current liabilities NBBERE 2,727 926
NET CURRENT ASSETS FRBEETE 150,772 144,472
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEBERRD AR
LIABILITIES 176,132 169,832
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Convertible notes AR ER 27 - -
Total non-current liabilities ERBAaBEREAE - -
Net assets EETFHE 176,132 169,832
EQUITY e
Issued capital BBITRA 29 50,945 53,136
Reserves L 31(b) 125,187 116,696
Total equity A 176,132 169,832
HUANG Shaokang MENG Hu
BELE #HIR
Director Director
EF EF
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2.1

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

EPRO Limited (“the Company”) (fo be renamed as
"DX.com Holdings Limited”) (“the Company”) was a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 15 March 2000 under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company
were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (the
"GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) on 2 August 2000.

The registered office of the Company is located at
Cricket Square, Hutfchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Room 1501, 15/F, Tung Hip Commercial
Building, 244-248 Des Voeux Road Cenftral, Hong Kong.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 6 September 2013 and approved by the Registrar
of Companies of the Cayman Islands on 11 September
2013, the English name of the Company be changed
from "EPRO Limited” to "DX.com Holdings Limited” and
the Chinese name of the Company be changed from
"SEABMRAT to "DX.com ZERABMR AT

The Group’s principal activities have not changed
during the year and consisted of provision of
professional information technology ('IT") contract
and maintenance services, E-commerce and provision
of online sales platform.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Cerfified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"), and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except for equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss and
available-for-sales investments, which have been
measured at fair value. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MR

Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F R A=THILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries and confrolled special purpose entities
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) for the year
ended 30 June 2013. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries and confrolled special purpose entities
are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounfing policies. The
results of subsidiaries and controlled special purpose
entities are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control,
and confinue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All infra-group balances,
tfransactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting
from intra-group fransactions and dividends are
eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary or
controlled special purpose entity are attributed to the
non-confrolling interest even if it results in a deficit
balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary or
confrolled special purpose entity, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity fransaction.

If the Group losses confrol over a subsidiary or
controlled special purpose entity, it derecognises (i)
the assetfs (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary or controlled special purpose entity, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest
and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value
of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value
of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained profits, as appropriate.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRS, which is applicable to the Group, for the first
time for the current year’'s consolidated financial
statements.

HKAS 1T Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statements - Presentation of
ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income

The adoption of the revised HKFRS has had no
significant financial effect on these consolidated
financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting this HKFRS is as
follows:

HKAS 1 Amendments: Amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements - Presentation of
l[fems of Other Comprehensive Income

The HKAS T Amendments change the grouping of
items presented in other comprehensive income.
I[tems that could be reclassified (or recycled) to
profit or loss at a future point in time (for example,
net gain on hedge of a net investment, exchange
differences on translation of foreign operations, net
movement on cash flow hedges and net loss or
gain on available-for-sale financial assets) would be
presented separately from items which will never be
reclassified (for example, actuarial gains and losses
on defined benefit plans and revaluation of land and
buildings). The amendments will affect presentation
only and have no impact on the financial position or
performance.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 30 June 2013 HE-T—=

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments fo HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities !

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ®

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements!
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangement!

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities '
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement !

HKAS 19 (2011)
HKAS 27 (2011)
HKAS 28 (2011)

Employee Benefits'

Separate Financial Statements'

Investments in Associate and
Joint Ventfures'

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities 2

HKAS 32 Amendments

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine'!
HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle!

Annual Improvements
Project

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2015
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application. So far, the Group considers that the
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely
to have a significant impact on the Group's results of
operatfions and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries and conftrolled special
purposed entities

Subsidiary and confrolled special purposed entity
is an enfity whose financial and operating policies
the Company confrols, directly or indirectly, so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries and controlled special
purposed entities are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in
subsidiaries that are not classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary, in
which the Group has a long term interest of generally
not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and
over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position
at the Group’'s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. The Group’s share of the posf-acquisition
results and reserves of associates is included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates and eliminated to the extent of the Group's
investments in associates, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
tfransferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates, which was not previously eliminated or
recognised in the consolidated reserves, is included
as part of the Group’s investments in associates and is
not individually tfested for impairment.
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F R A=THILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Associates (Continued)

The results of associates are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
interests in associates are tfreated as non-current
assets and are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration fransferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
fransferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether o
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in
the event of liquidation either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assetfs. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the confractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as aft the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contfingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability that is a financial instrument and within
the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If
the confingent consideration is not within the scope
of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate HKFRS. Confingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
setflement is accounted for within equity.
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-confrolling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assetfs of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tfested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment fest of goodwill as
at 30 June. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of unifs.

Impairment is determined by assessing fthe
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(groups of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

When goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operatfion when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cashgenerating unit
retained.
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE-ZT—=F A=+t HILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories and financial assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or
cash generating unit’'s value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the
recoverable amount is deftermined for the cash-
generating unit fo which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific fo the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
the consolidated income statement in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset and certain financial assets is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates
used fo determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not fo an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited fo the
consolidated income statement in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 FE€HBEHRE »)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person,

®

@D

(i)

has confrol or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group; or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

®

@D

iii)

@)

)

vi

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary or the
other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one enftity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an enfity related to
the Group;

the entity is conftfrolled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);
and

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset fo its
working condition and location for its infended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put info operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the consolidated income statement in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings Over the lease term

Leasehold improvements 20% to 50%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Computer equipment and software 18% to 33'/.%

Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (Other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assefs acquired in a business combination is the
fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intfangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed aft least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are fested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash generatfing unit level. Such intfangible assets
are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether indefinite life assessment confinues
to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the consolidated
income statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects tfo develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intfangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and
its ability to use or sell the assef, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability
of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure
which dose not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated af cost less
any impairment losses and are amortfised using the
straight-line basis over the commercial lives of the
underlying products commencing from the date when
the products are put info commercial production.
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE-ZT—=F A=+t HILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
are charged to the consolidated income statement
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value,
plus transaction costs, except for the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for frading if they are acquired
for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assefs
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position af fair
value with positive net changes in fair value presented
as finance income or and negative net changes in fair
value presented as finance costs in the consolidated
income statement. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policy
set out for "Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria under
HKAS 39 and satisfied.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess
whether the intent to sell them in the near term is
still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade
these financial assefs due fo inactive markefs and
management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable
future significantly changes, the Group may elect
to reclassify them. The reclassification from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss to loans
and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or
held-to-maturity investments depends on the natfure
of the assets. This evaluation does not affect any
financial assets designated at fair value through profit
or loss using the fair value option at designation, as
these instruments cannot be reclassified affer initial
recognition.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are
accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded
at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks
are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Reassessment only occurs if
there is a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and otfther financial assefs
(Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
info account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an infegral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in
the consolidated income statement. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in the consolidated
income statement in finance costs for loans and in
other expenses for receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity are
classified as held to maturity when the Group has the
positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity.
Held-fo-maturity investments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in other income and gains in the consolidated
income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the consolidated income statement in
finance costs.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for frading nor designated at
fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this
category are those which are infended to be held for
an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assefs
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(Continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment
is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement in other income, or unfil the investment
is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-
sale investment revaluation reserve to the income
statement in other expenses. Interest and dividends
earned are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as other income in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the
variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b)
the probabilities of the various estimates within the
range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and
infention to sell its available-for-sale financial assets
in the near term are still appropriate. When, in
rare circumstances, the Group is unable to frade
these financial assefs due fo inactive markefs and
management’s intent fo do so significantly changes
in the foreseeable future, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets. Reclassification to
loans and receivables is permitted when the financial
assets meet the definition of loans and receivables
and the Group has the intent and ability to hold
these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity.
The reclassification to the held-to-maturity category
is permitted only when the Group has the ability and
intent to hold until the maturity date of the financial
asset.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and otfther financial assefs
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(Continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the
date of reclassification becomes its new amortised
cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amorfised to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the investment using
the effective interest rate. Any difference between the
new amortfised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective inferest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded
in equity is reclassified to the consolidated income
statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired;

the Group has transferred its rights fo receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
"pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
fransferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has enfered into pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset, When it has neither fransferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In the case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The fransferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred affter the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘“loss event”)
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If
the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or nof, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues fo be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). If a
loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either
directly or through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
fo discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been
fransferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring affer the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a future write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs in
the consolidated income statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of
any principal payment and amortisation) and its
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment below its cost. The determination of what
is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement.
"Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss - measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the consolidated income statement -
is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available
for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Future interest income continues to be accrued based
on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded
as part of finance income. Impairment losses on debt
instruments are reversed through the consolidated
income statement, if the increase in fair value of the
insfruments can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE-ZT—=F A=+t HILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group defermines
the classification of its financial liabilities at inifial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly aftributable transaction costs.

The Group'’s financial liabilities include trade payables
and, other payables and accruals and due tfo
associates.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss includes financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as af fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term. This category includes derivative financial
insfruments enfered into by the Group that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held
for tfrading are recognised in the consolidated income
statement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the consolidated income statement does not include
any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
at fair value through profit or loss and designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in
HKAS 39 and satisfied.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the consolidated income
statement when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking intfo account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the consolidated income
statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are those contracts that require a payment to be
made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because the specified debtor fails fo make a
payment when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt insfrument. A financial guarantee contract
is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Convertible notes

The component of convertible notes that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a
liability in the statement of financial position, net of
fransaction costs. On issuance of convertible notes,
the fair value of the liability component is determined
using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible
bond; and this amount is carried as a long term
liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished
on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that
is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity,
net of transaction costs. The carrying amount of the
conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent
years. Transaction costs are apportioned between
the liability and equity components of the convertible
bonds based on the allocation of proceeds to the
liability and equity components when the instruments
are first recognised.
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F R A=THILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

If the conversion option of convertible notes exhibits
characteristics of an embedded derivative, it is
separated from its liability component. On initial
recognition, the derivative component of the
convertible notes is measured at fair value and
presented as part of derivative financial instruments.
Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the derivative component is recognised
as the liability component. Transaction costs are
apportioned between the liability and derivative
components of the convertible notes based on the
allocation of proceeds to the liability and derivative
components when the instruments are initially
recognised. The portion of the transaction costs
relating to the liability component is recognised
initially as part of the liability. The porfion relating to
the derivative component is recognised immediately
in the consolidated income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is freated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is currently enforceable legal
right fo offset the recognised amounts and there is
an infention to setftle on a net basis, or fo realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded
in active markets is determined by reference to
quoted market prices or dealer price quotations
(bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active
market, the fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using
recent arm’s length market tfransactions; reference to
the current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow
analysis; and option pricing models.

Inventories

Inventories represent trading merchandise and direct
costs incurred for IT contract work in progress and are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less estimated costs fo be incurred to completfion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents service fees received
in advance. Revenue is recognised and deferred
revenue is released to the consolidated income
statement when the corresponding services are
rendered.
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F R A=THILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to seftle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the consolidated income statement.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the
Group on certain products are recognised based
on sales volume and past experience of the level of
repairs and returns discounted to their present values
as appropriatfe.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured af the amount expected
fo be recovered from or paid fo the faxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

- when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
fransaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

- in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tfax credits and any unused fax losses, Deferred
tax assets are recognised, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

- when the deferred tax asset relating fo the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
fransaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

- in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised fo the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the femporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assetfs are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE-ZT—=F A=+t HILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is seftled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantfively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same faxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all atfaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is infended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value
is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the consolidated income statement
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by
equal annual instalments deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the consolidated
income statement by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.

Where the Group receives a non-monetary grant, the
asset and the grant are recorded at the fair value of
the non-monetary asset and released to the income
stafement over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset by equal annual instalments.

Where the Group receives government loans granted
with no or at a below-market rate of interest for the
construction of a qualifying asset, the initial carrying
amount of the government loans is defermined using
the effective interest rate method, as further explained
in the accounting policy for “Financial liabilities”
above. The benefit of the government loans granted
with no or at a below-market rate of interest, which
is the difference between the initial carrying value
of the loans and the proceeds received, is treated
as a government grant and released to the income
statement over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset by equal annual instalments.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 FE€HBEHRE »)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognifion

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) from rendering of professional IT contract
services, on the percentage of completfion
basis, as further explained in the accounting
policy for "Contract for services” below;

(b) provision of maintenance services, on a time
proportion basis over the maintenance period;

©) from re-selling of hardware and software, when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement fo the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(d) tfrading of goods via E-commerce, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(e provision of online sales platform, when the
services are ended;

) interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument fo the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

(9) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established.
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F R A=THILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Conftract for services

Contract revenue on the rendering of services
comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims
and incentive payments arising from professional IT
contract services. Contract costs incurred comprise
equipment and material costs, subcontracting costs,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
variable and fixed overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised
on the percentage of completion method, measured
by reference to the proportion of work completed
fo date to the estimated total work of the relevant
contract. Where the outcome of a contract cannot be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be
recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as
they are anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is freated as an amount due from contract
customers. Where progress billings exceed contract
costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an amount
due tfo contract customers.

Employee benefits
Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up fo the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the fime of
leave.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits schemes (the
"MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees
who are eligible fo participate in the MPF Scheme.
Conftributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
tfo the consolidated income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer confributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a cenfral pension scheme operafted by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
tfo confribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The confributions
are charged to the consolidated income statement as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension scheme.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
parficipants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
fransactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a "Binomial Model”.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the year in which the performance and/or service
condifions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled fransactions at the end
of the reporting period unftil the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of comprehensive income for
a year represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F R A=THILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-seftled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is safisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are safisfied.

Where the ferms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the ferms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification, that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award
is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the conftrol
of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.

Dividend

Final dividend proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency. Each enfity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates ruling at the date
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the inifial
fransactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
defermined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollar. At the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
info the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period and their consolidated income statements are
franslated info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
franslated info Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F R A=THILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgment, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements.

Income tfaxes

Significant judgements on the future tax treatment
of certain transactions are required in determining
income tax provisions. The Company carefully
evaluates tax implications of fransactions and
tax provisions are recorded accordingly. The tax
tfreatment of such fransactions is reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislation.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of frade receivables

The policy for the impairment of frade receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of accounts
and on management’s judgment. A considerable
amount of judgment is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer. If the financial conditions of
customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowances may be required.
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Provision for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging
analysis at the end of each reporting period, and
makes impairment for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable
for sales. The management estimates the net
realisable value for such inventories based primarily
on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. The Group carries out an inventory review
on a product-by product basis at the end of each
reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow moving items.

Estimated fair value of financial assets

The estimation of fair value of financial assets required
the Group to estimate the future market value
expected to be received from the disposal of the
financial assets and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused fax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
fiming and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. Further details are
contained in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment, the Group
has to consider various factors, such as expected
usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear,
the care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or
similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of
the useful life of the asset is based on the experience
of the Group with similar assets that are used in a
similar way. Additional depreciation is made if the
estimated useful lives and/or the residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment are different
from previous estimation. Useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each end of reporting date
based on changes in circumstances.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount ratfe in
order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 30 June
2013 was HK$15,844,000 (2012: HK$10,436,000). Further
details are stated in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Assessment of impairment of non-current
assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible
assets are test for impairment annually and at other
fimes when such an indicator exists. Other non-
financial assets are fested for impairment when there
are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generatfing unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is based
on available data from binding sales fransactions
in an arm’s length fransaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been assessed
for impairment based on the financial statements
available for those investments. This assessment
requires the Group to make estimates about expected
future performance of the investments and hence
they are subject to uncertainty. The unlisted equity
investments have been fully impaired in the previous
year. Further details are included in note 19 fo the
consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of convertible notes

The fair values of the convertible notes were
calculated using the closing price of the Company
and the Black Scholes option pricing model. The
models involve assumptions on the Company’s stock
price, expiration, risk-free rate and volatility. Should
these assumptions change, there would be material
changes to the valuation.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in provision of
professional IT confract and maintenance services,
E-commerce and provision of online sales platform.

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their nature and has two
reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) provision of professional IT contract and
maintenance services; and

(b) E-commerce and provision of online sales
platform.

Management monitors the results of its operating
segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profif,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest
income, finance costs, fair value gains/(losses) from
the Group’s financial instruments as well as head
office and corporate expenses are excluded from
such measurement.

Segment assets exclude unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated head office

and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. #8445 388 %} )

(Continued)
Year ended 30 June 2013 R-BE-—=FXA=+HEER
Professional E-commerce
IT contract and  and provision
maintenance of online
services sales platform
segment segment Total
HEEA EFEBER
BMEESARESE RHA L
RE R 2B HEFARDI A
HK$" 000 HKS$" 000 HKS$" 000
FHET FHET FAET
Segment revenue 2 EBURA 162,788 1,241,329 1,404,117
Segment results o EPHEE 14,921 44,465 59,386
Unallocated other income R H AL YA
and gains g 1,221
Unallocated expenses KO EHR (6.667)
Profit from operations EIEAT 53,940
Finance costs A& B A (24)
Share of loss of DEEBE QR Z
an associate B8 (40)
Profit before tax B 25 AT &2 A 53,876
Income tax expense FiEHER (17.050)
Profit for the year REE AT 36,826
Segment assets PEEE 166,714 171,081 337,795
Unallocated assets AOBZEE 1,502
Total assets mEE 339,297
Segment liabilities DEEE 15,925 48,758 64,683
Unallocated liabilities Kotz &tE 54,420
Total liabilities FEN =R 119,103
Capital expenditure BEARE 29,877 4,071 33,948
Unallocated capital expenditure &% B 2 & A =X =
33,948
Depreciation and amortisation  #1& & # 1,930 1,091 3,021
Unallocated depreciation KPRz E
and amortisation K -

3,021
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2012

Segment revenue
Segment results
Unallocated other income
and gains
Unallocated expenses
Profit from operations
Finance costs
Share of profits of
an associate

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Segment assets
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Capital expenditure
Unallocated capital expenditure

Depreciation and amortisation
Unallocated depreciation
and amortisation

’EPRO Limited 2 EEFR A F

DR
DB
ROE RN
e
APBzBER
2R F
BA A
HEBEATZ

&

B 75 1T &2 7
FREHER

REE &N

IHMEE
ANBLZEE

BEE

SEREE
ANBLzBE

&

BARX
R

o
Rl
m

[P -FNGEa

FERER
AOBZITE
&3

ReEsER 2

RZE——FXA=THEER

Professional

IT contract and
maintenance
services
segment
BEEEA
BMEESARESE
RE R 2B
HK$" 000

FET

131,123

16,687

96,362

13,344

1,879

1,693

E-commerce
and provision

of online
sales platform
segment Total
BEFEHR
REHE L
HETFADH st
HK$" 000 HK$’ 000
FET FET
1,284,889 1,416,012
154,425 171,112
1,242
(8.387)
163,967
(30)
5
163,942
(32,185)
131,757
259,207 355,569
36,777
392,346
41,618 54,962
39,828
94,790
24,704 26,583
26,583
439 2,132
860
2,992
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F R A=THILFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
(Continued)
Geographical information
(a) Revenue from external customers

The revenue information is based on the
location of the customers.

eI HER #)

i B & B
(@) BEHNEESZHMA

THWABRZETED A -

Group
A&
Year ended 30 June 2013 —E-—=—HEXA=+HEE
North South Consoli-
America  America Africa Europe Asia  Oceania dated
EEM HEM e B ] FEM &
HK$" 000 HKS$'000 HKS' 000 HK$'000 HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS' 000
TAn TEn TAn ThR TAn ThR TAn
Segment revenue: AHYUA
Professional IT EREARE
confract and maintenance 28R
services EERK - - - - 162,788 - 162,788
E-commerce and provision ETABREM
of onling sales platform BLBeTs 152,529 368,131 4281 567,760 105,004 43,664 1,240,543
152,529 368,131 4,241 567,760 267,792 43,664 1,404,117
Year ended 30 June 2012 ZE—ZH¥XA=1+HEE
North South Consoli-
America  America Africa Europe Asia Oceania dated
EEM ax Fil B Eeb| KEM At
HKS' 000 HK$' 000 HKS'000 HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS' 000 HKS'000
TAL TR TEn TAn TERL TAn TEn
Segment revenue: AHUA:
Professional IT EXENBR
contract and maintenance B8R
services BERE - S - - 131,123 - 131,123
E-commerce and provision EFHBRES
of online sales platform BLHETR 123244 359,959 2266 512480 244,148 42,792 1,284,889
123,244 359,959 2,266 512,480 375,271 42,792 1,416,012
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4,

ReEsER 2

(Continued)
(b) Segment assets (b)) DEHEE
Year ended 30 June 2013 —E-=ZEXA=+HEE
Group
k58
North South Consoli-
America  America Africa Europe Asia  Oceania dated
L EM HENM E B %) KEM At
HK$" 000 HK$"000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HKS' 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000
T TAL T TEL T TEL T
Segment assets IHEE - - - - 339,297 - 339,297
Capital expenditure BEXRR - - - - 33,948 - 33,948
Year ended 30 June 2012 —EFFAA=THEFE
North South Consoli-
America  America Africa Europe Asia Oceania dated
JEEM BEN M B Tl KEM A
HK$"000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$"000 HK$"000
TET T TEL T Thn TAn TAn
Segment assets THEE - - - - 392,346 - 392346
Capital expenditure EXRY - - - - 26,583 - 26,583
Information about a major customer EBEREREFZER
A major customer of the Group accounted for RZBE-—=FX A=+HALFE F~&£H

approximately 8% (2012: 7%) of the total revenue
during the year ended 30 June 2013.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MR

Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F R A=THILFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

5.

Revenue, which is also the Group’'s furnover,
represents the net invoiced value of provision of
professional IT contract and maintenance services
and the transaction price arising from E-commerce
and provision of online sales platform.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and

gains is as follows:

Revenue:
Provision of professional
IT contract and
maintenance services
E-commerce and provision of
online sales platform

Other income and gains:

Interest income

Dividend income from equity
investments at fair
value through profit or loss

Reversal of impairment of
trade receivables (note 21)

Fair value gain on equity
investments aft fair value
through profit or loss

Gain on disposal of
property,plant and equipment
(note 14)

Gain on disposal of equity
investment aft fair value
through profit or loss

Exchange gains, net

Write-back of trade payables

Write-back of other payables
and accruals

Others

Total revenue, other income
and gains

’ ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F3R

WA :
RHUHBXEAREAOR
#ERERD

EFREBRIRHE L
HETYA

HAl YA e W a
FEWA
BAFEFABRZ

MARRRERE 2
5 R R
BOEWREZRTORE
(MraE21)
BRAFEFARTEZ

EARABRERERFE

il
HEDE BMERREZ
&7 (FfsE14)

HERQAFEFABEZ
ERRARREREZ AN

SMNE Uz - FHER

F 0 FE AN BR AR

10 E At FE A BR SR
KERtBE

Ht

BUA -~ E AU A R s

WA~ Hib i AR WS

WA (TR RAREEZ 8RE) BIEREHE

e

AAREA D REEREBRE 2 ERFE
REFEBRRBEE HET L XSE

(=

REBZWA - EtRARK AT -

Group

rEH
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-CF
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
FET FHT
162,788 131,123
1,241,329 1,284,889
1,404,117 1,416,012
108 87
46 28
- 296
232 424
- 1,085
69 671
360 1
- 118
- 832
766 466
1,581 4,008
1,405,698 1,420,020
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

e SRR MY R

Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

6.

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

Cost of sales*
Provision of professional
IT confract and
maintenance services
E-commerce and provision of
online sales platform

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases in respect of
land and building

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of
available-for-sales investment
(note 19)

Auditors’ remuneration

Impairment of goodwill (note 15)

Impairment of other
intangible assets (note 16)

Impairment of tfrade receivables
(note 21)

Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration in note 8):
Wages and salaries
Net pension scheme

contributions*

Interest income

Exchange gains, net

Reversal of impairment of
frade receivables

Dividend income from equity
investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Fair value gain on equity
investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of equity
investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Write-back of trade payables

Write-back of other payables
and accruals

’EPRO Limited 2 EEFR A F

P
=}

B R A
HEXEAMREHR
BERBRY

EFABRIEHE L

HEFE

[m]
[a]s]
e

WE BMERRBZNE

RELIBEEBFZE&E2HOZ
REBELRIEA

HEME  BERREHEA

HEAMHBEREEE
(MH3E19)

% BB BN 2
R E (HFE15)
H & ERE (HE16)

FEWE 5 BR FURME (FiIE21)

B TR (B3 R8Tt 2
BEE=Be)
ITERHE
ke HFOFE

FE WA
SMVEW R - R
BEEWE ZERFAE

BAFEFABRZ
EHRBRERE 2R
A B

BRATEABRZ
LEHRARREAFERF

HEME BEERREZEMN
(KM3E14)

HERRXAFEFAEE
ZLEMRARBRERE 2 AT

1 [0 FE A BR X
B e R R B BE

B Bt A1 2 A

AEE BB BF RN, GEA)T
FI B IREREE

Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E—=f —E—_F
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
F#ET FET
120,547 94,193
725,633 715,335
846,180 809,528
3,021 2,992
7,936 5,175
187 -
- 3,024
750 650
10,436 -
19.260 -
173 -
41,815 17,340
3,456 2,057
45,271 19,397
(108) (87)
(360) )
- (296)
46) (28)
(232) (424)
- (1,085)
69) 671)
- (118)
- (832)




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 30 June 2013 HE - T —=

e ISR MR

FRAZTHLEFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued) 6. Ilﬁﬁ Al B A ()
* At 30 June 2013, the Group did not have forfeited RZTE—=F~A=+8H, ZJS;%ELX
contributions available to reduce its contributions to BHRBWRRESHEZHR(ZT—=
the pension scheme in future years (2012: Nil). F | e
# The technical expenses for the year of approximately RAFE 2 5l & A4 299,679,000/
HK$99,679,000 (2012: HK$60,384,000) are included in T (ZZT— — 4 :60,384,0008 ) 2
“cost of sales” in the consolidated income statement. BiETEGReERER 2 ([EREEKRAE])
A o
FINANCE COSTS 7. ®MERX
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E-=fF —ET——F
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
FHET FAT
Interest expenses on bank loans BITERFRMAX 24 =
Notional interest on convertible LA,\K,’% FIEFHE A RRERE
notes (note 27) at effective ZBENE (HE27)
interest rate - 30
Total finance costs BB R AR 24 30

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION 8.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and Sectfion 161 of

EEME

REBIFFEIERES ETRAIEBER
AEPIE1OVG AT HREZ A FEE S

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: 2T
Group
AEE
2013 2012
== —E—_F
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHERT FH&T
Fees we 163 157
Other emoluments: Hime :
Salaries, allowances and EXRFe  EMEMK
benefits in kind B = 3,743 2,095
Pension scheme contributions BIREFTEIHK 30 12
3,773 2,107
3,936 2,264

’ ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F3R




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MY R

Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8.

(@)

(®)

Executive directors

2013

Mr. HUANG Shaokang
Mr. MENG Hu

Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong
Mr. LUO Jia

2012

Mr. HUANG Shaokang
Mr. MENG Hu

Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong

Note:

(a) appointed on 6 November 2012

—E—=F
BELREE
mREE
R A
BEEE

—E-CF
mREE
Bk EE

Non-executive director

Mr. CHEN Ling Sonny

Mr. ZHANG Zhen
Mr. GAO Xiang

RESLLE
BAEE

’EPRO Limited 2 EEFR A F

EEME @
(a) HITESE
Group
rEE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
e
Hit 28 Bie
ue kBRI sHEIH R B
Note HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000
B &% FTAET T TR TAT
- 728 - 728
- 446 - 446
- 1,988 15 2,003
(a) - 581 15 596
- 3,743 30 3,773
- 662 - 662
- 1,433 12 1,445
- 2,095 12 2,107
B E -
(a) RZZE—Z—F+—AHEZ
T
(b) FHITEE
Group
AEME
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
ks FET FET
(o) = -
(o) - -
© - -




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MR

Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F R A=THILFE

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continueay 8. EZZEME ()

(b) Non-executive director (Continued) (b) FHITESEH)
Notes: B sE -
(a) resigned on 24 February 2012 (o) R-TE——F A -+MA#
£
(b) re-designated as “Non-executive director” on (b) RZTE——F+=-A=+\H
28 December 2011 and resigned on 14 June BEBERITEFAIR -
2013 —=FXATHBETE
(©) appointed on 28 December 2011 (©) R-_E——F+=-_A=-+/\H
EZRE
(¢) Independent non-executive directors (c) BAFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive BYERNTEE I AEEMESWOT ¢

directors during the year were as follows:

Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —EF—_F
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
s FHET TFET
Mr. LU Wei BESLAE (a) 48 45
Mr. FONG Fuk Wai HEELE 48 45
Mr. LEE Kin Fai FRERBLE (b) - 21
Mr. LI Guanbao FEREE ©) 48 23
Mr. MAK Yat Tang Anthony ERAKEE (d) 19 23
Mr. ZHU Zhi RELE (e - -
Mr. LIN Xiaofeng T IE S & e) - -
Mr. LAM Kit Sun MEERR e (e - -
163 157
Noftes: M‘JEE .
(a) resigned on 1 August 2013 (@) R-E—=FEN\A—HET
(b) resigned on 28 December 2011 (b) R-TE——F+-A=-+)\AR
BHE
©) appointed on 28 December 2011 ©) R-TE——F+-A=-+)N\AR
BEE
(d) appointed on 28 December 2011 and retired (d) R-ZZE——%F+=-A=-+N\H
on 29 November 2012 BEEWYR=_FT—=—F+—A
—+thABRME
©) appointed on 1 August 2013 ) RZZE—=F/\A—AEZHE
There were no other emoluments payable fo B T {A] E Ath FE S8 3L FEH
the independent non-executive directors during TEE2Me (ZE——F &) o

the year (2012: Nil).
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

DIRECTORS"” REMUNERATION (continued)

No further emoluments were paid by the Group to
the executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors either as an
inducement upon joining or to join the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

During the year, there were no share options
granted to the directors in respect of their services
fo the Group. None of the directors has waived any
emoluments during the year.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included 1 (2012: 2) directors, details of whose
remuneratfion are set ouf in note 8 above. Details of
the remuneration of the remaining 4 (2012: 3) non-
director, highest paid employees are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions BRIREETEIHER

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:

8.

Fe H2MREWN R

EEME )

AEEMEANENTES FRTES
LB FRTEEXNEME MBS A
EREMAINIMARE B 2 2Rk (F
SRR B A -

FA BEAESHRERBRAEEM
ETERE SIESEERFRRETMH

2N
e

IEBREHET

FANREROFEERE R (25—
F —R)EF BEZHMEeFHBER
XHFF8 e FRBTIUZ (T — —F
RIFEEESFNEEZMESHBOT -

NNl

Group

AEME
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
FHERT FAT
3.897 1,500
120 78
4,017 1,578

HeENFTIBEAZESHIFESERE
ZBBERTX:

Number of employees

EEAK
2013 2012
—E-=F T F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,0005% JT. £2,000,0007% 7T 1 =
4 3
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MR

Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F R A=THILFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FIEHER
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate ERBNERDOBRBERNFEAEBEE G
of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable SAERTATABE16.5% (ZT—_F :
profits arising from Hong Kong during the year. 16.5%) &5t & ©
Taxes on profits in respect of Group companies REBREMMMELES 2 AR 2B
operating elsewhere have been calculated at the H BREMEMZEG LS  RERIE
rates of tax prevailing in the respective tax countries/ Bl BEEBRBEAERE CRITHEAH -

jurisdictions in which they operate based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect

thereof.
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
FTERT FHET
Group: REE
Current fax - Hong Kong BNEREL 15 — B
Charge for the year REFEREZ 14,102 26,208
Current tax - Elsewhere BVERR 7 — A b it = 948 177
Deferred tax (note 28) EAERE 5 (P 5E28) 2,000 5,800
Total tax charged for the year FARIEZ HAHE 17,050 32,185
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax using the statutory rate for the countries in
which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled
to the tax expenses at the effective tax rate is as
follows:

Profit before tax BR %% A 2 A

Tax calculated at Hong Kong REEEGENTE
tax rates

Effect of different taxation IR EEE 2 T2
rate in overseas

Income not subject to tax RHUA

Expenses not deductible for tax AaMBEzEY

Tax losses utilised from previous BIMAREERB 2 BB

periods

Unrecognised deferred AEREEHIBEE
tax assets

Other Hit

Tax charge at effective tax rate RERHIE3 5%
of 31.5% (2012: 19.6%) (Z2— =5 :19.6%)
AHEZHEX

NET PROFIT FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s net profit from ordinary activities
attributable to owners of the Company for the
year includes a profit of HK$118,872,000 (2012:

HK$3,465,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 31(b)).

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend any dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2013 (2012: Nil).

’EPRO Limited 2 EEFR A F

10.

FEeHRER =
BRANRKREAIBRARAR RENE AR
FraMBER 2 EZEMRFE 2FHBEHR X B
FRNERBRERAEE ZEEOT

12.

Group
N |
2013 2012
—g-=F% —E-CF
HK$' 000 % HK$' 000 %
TERT TET
53,876 163,942
8,890 16.5 27,050 16.5
1,950 3.6 1,070 0.6
(1.749) (3.3) (1,496) 0.9)
6,394 11.8 5,082 3.1
= = (84) -
1,870 45 736 0.4
(305) (0.6) (173) (CR))!
17,050 315 32,185 19.6
- AL AU
1. ZAFEEAEBGEREE
BB FER

RERNEARRZHBREPEEBZHEEA
ELEBEBEEBK AT FEEA118,872,000
BT (-ZF— 4 : 3,465,000 7T) (M
31(b)) -

[ g=)

EEETEREREHE_T—=F-A
“tALEARE (ZE—=F &) -
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

e ISR MR

Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F R A=THILFE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per

share are based on:

Profit attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the
Company, used in the basic
earnings per share calculations

Notional interest on convertible
notes

Profit for the purposes of
diluted earnings per share

Shares

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during
the year used in the basic
earnings per share calculation

Effect of dilutive potential
ordinary shares
- convertible notes
- share options

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose
of diluted earnings per share

’ ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F3R

R EERER
rillzo)-=
RARBEBRER
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HBRRREZAENE

AR B S RS
BRI 2 Wz

Bt
CIEEETET T
BF 2 NE I
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SAEEREEAENZ
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13.

AAREERESZFRA
BhEzERAEF

BEREABMNEEDEZFERARR LR
BEEREAREZFERN  ARFAR
ERITEBRZNEFHEH -

BEREAREERNBATELEE

2013 2012
—E-=F T ——F
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FET FHET
37,105 131,490

- 30

37,105 131,520

Numbers of shares
v 4=
2013 2012
—E—=F —_=E=—=

5,243,240,918  5,365,273,286

- 14,676,149
- 664,091

5,243,240,918 5,380,613,526
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.9% BEKRKE

Group
b3 |
Furniture, Computer
Leasehold fixtures and  equipment Motor
improvements  equipment and software vehicles Total
i ElRE
HEXE  EERRG RE# RE At
HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$' 000 HKS'000
TAL TAL THR TR ThL
30 June 2013 ZE-ZEXA=1H
At July 2012: “5-“F+A-H:
Cost RAE 2,494 5111 11,715 281 19,601
Accumulated depreciation ZETERAE
and impaiment (1,305) (3,539) (9.386) %) (14325)
Net carrying amount BEFE 1,189 1,572 2,329 186 5,276
At 1 July 2012, net of “E-ZftR-A-
accumulated depreciation BB EHTERAE
and impairment 1,189 1,572 2,329 186 5,276
Additions RE 2,109 399 1,680 695 4,883
Acquisition of subsidiaries hEEH B AR
(nofe 32) (H332) 655 306 281 - 1,242
Depreciation provided ERRERE
during the year (783) (728) (1,347) (163) (3.021)
Disposal e - (204) (46) (142) (392)
Exchanges realignment EXRE 29 19 82 0] 129
At 30 June 2013, net of ZE-ZERXAZTH
accumulated depreciation BB EHTERAE
and impairment 3,199 1,364 2,979 575 8,117
At 30 June 2013: ZR-ZERRZTH:
Cost KA E 5,114 5,116 13,509 695 24,434
Accumulated depreciation ZHAERRE
and impaiment (1915) (3752  (10,5%) (1200 (16317)
Net carrying amount BEFE 3,199 1,364 2,979 575 8117
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZZT—=F R NA=1+HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ - BMERZHE o)

(Continued)
Group
1%E
Fumniture, Computer
Land and leasehold  fixturesand  equipment Motor
building improvements  equipment and software vehicles Total
Ak~ BhsfE
THRN% BERE  RERRE e e a3t
HKS$' 000 HK$"000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000
AR TARL TER AL TAn AL
(note)
(Bist)
30 June 2012 ZE-ZEXA=TH
At 1 July 20110 “2-—%+f-R:
Cost RAE 52,197 1,638 2,854 10,492 145 67,326
Accumulated depreciation ZEFTERAE
and impairment (362) (814) (1.931) (8.078) Gl (11,236)
Net carrying amount FEEE 51,835 824 923 2414 94 56,000
At 1 July 2011, net of “2--%+f-R-
accumulated depreciation BHBREHTERAE
and impairment 51,835 824 923 2414 94 56,090
Additions HE - 924 228 1,150 134 2,436
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENERR
(note 32) (KH3t32) : - 97 - - 97
Depreciation provided ERRERE
during the year (604) (493) (578) (1.273) (44) (2.992)
Disposal i (51,31) (75) i . - (51,306)
Exchanges realignment ELAE - 9 12 38 2 61
At 30 June 2012, net of ZE-Z§/R=TR-
accumulated depreciation EHREHTERAE
and impairment - 1,189 1,572 2,329 186 5276
At 30 June 2012: ZR-ZERRZTR:
Cost RAE - 2,494 5111 11,715 281 19,601
Accumulated depreciation ZHTERAE
and impairment . (1,305) (3,539) (9,386) (95) (14,325)
Net carrying amount BHYE - 1,189 1572 2,329 186 5276
Note: f s :

The Group’s land and building was situated in Hong Kong
and was held under a medium lease term.

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the land and building
were disposed at a consideration of HK$52,500,000 with a gain
of approximately HK$1,085,000 (note 5) being recognised in
the consolidated income statement, after deducting a direct
cost of approximately HK$109,000.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

GOODWILL

Cost at 1T July 2011
Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 32)

Cost and net carrying amount
at 30 June 2012

At 30 June 2012
Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

Cost at 1 July 2012, net of
accumulated impairment

Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 32)

Impairment during the year
(note 6)

Cost and net carrying amount
at 30 June 2013

At 30 June 2013
Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

’EPRO Limited 2 EEFR A F

e SRR MY R

Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

15. BE&

RZB——FLA—HZKER

W B bt & R) (Bt 3E32)

R-E-——"FXA=1+HZ
A B B TR (B

RZE—Z—FXA="1H
B AR

2FRE

BREEE
RZBE——FtA—HKAK
B0k 2R E
UM B A /) (F95E32)
RAFERE (MI5E6)
RZZE—=FA=+HBZ
A K& BREF A
R-ZEBE—=F<A=+H
B

Z2FHRE

fRmEFE

Group
REH
HK$’ 000
FHET

10,436
10,436
10,436
10,436

10,436
15,844
(10,436)
15,844

15,844

15,844
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill arising through business combinations and
acquisitfion of a business has been allocated to the
relevant cash-generating units for impairment testing

as follows:

Carrying amount of goodwill
relevant to the online sales
platform of subsidiaries (note a)

Carrying amount of goodwill

relevant to the provision of BHa oz REE (MiEb)
professional IT contract
services of subsidiaries (note b)
Notes: B 5
(@) As detailed in note 32 to the consolidated financial (@)

e ISR MR

Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZZT—=F R NA=1+HILFE

15.

BE e

BEZRENR

HBARZBLEE
FeAEHzEE
2 &EE (M Ea)

HfB AR ZIRHEEER

statements, the Group acquired 100% equity interests
in Geekdigg Limited ("Geekdigg”) and its subsidiaries
together known as the "Geekdigg Group”) during the

year ended 30 June 2012.

The Geekdigg Group was principally engaged in
the operation of an online sales platform (the "MIC
Platform”) to facilitate the frading of merchandises
between sellers and buyers through the Internet

platform.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F &

EREBAHMUBEBMEL 2B E
ENREHBRSELEL - AERER
& BT

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
THET FAET

- 10,436

15,844 -
15,844 10,436

AN & BT R MY RE32AT A AL - Ak
BREZE-_ZT-——F A=1THILF
ERRBEEGBEEERART(E
El) REMNBARABIEAIESE
@) 2100%% & ©

TAMEEEIZNERUBLEETS
(IMICF&]) 2515 REBL¥EAR
BEEHRMT BARBEXSTE -



15.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill relevant to MIC Platform

The recoverable amount of the MIC Platform has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period approved by senior management of
the Company. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections was 12% and cash flows beyond the five-year
period were extrapolated using a growth rate of 5%.

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation
of the business of the MIC Platform as at 30 June 2012.
The following described each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Gross margin ES RS
Growth rate 185 &
Discount rate B3R =

Management determined the budgeted gross-margin
based on past performance and its expectation for market
development. The weighted average growth rates used are
based on the industry research. The discount rates used are
pre-tax that reflected current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific risks relating to the
relevant segments.

No impairment loss was provided on goodwill relevant to the
MIC Platform as its recoverable amount is higher than the
carrying amount of the goodwill as at 30 June 2012.

As detailed in the Company’s announcement dated 7 June
2013, the Group closed down the MIC Platform during the year
ended 30 June 2013 due to (i) the unsatisfactory performance
of the MIC Platform and (ii) keen competition in the business
to business e-commerce industry. As a result of the closure of
the MIC Platform, the Group provided a full impairment on the
carrying amount of goodwill relevant to the MIC Platform of
subsidiaries which amounted to approximately HK$10,436,000.

(b) As detailed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group acquired 100% equity interests
in e-Perfect IT Limited (“E-Perfect”) and its subsidiary,
e-Perfect Information Technology (Shenzhen) Limited
(collectively, referred as the “E-Perfect Group”) during
the year ended 30 June 2013.

The E-Perfect Group is principally engaged in the
provision of information and technology consultation
services, provision of corporate information solution
architecture, design and maintenance services and
frading of computer equipment and accessories.

EPRO Limited S EHR A F

15.

BE e
BEZEEINAMICES

MICF &z Al E B RARERETAN (&
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BHREMATATZMER -

35-70
1-120
12

EEERBBARAREET SRR CHLEE
EEHEEMNE -FEMzMEFHERRTTE
RITERR -FMEMCUEBREXEHAMN - KR
ERRREEZENTSIEREBS HEE
R ERR

MR -E-——FRXA=ZtEETHERZTK
BeBERNEBZREE R \ERHETR
ERE R R

BMAEERN-T-ZEAALANAL &
EEN T ZFAAZ+ALFENBE
MICF & - BE A) MICT & 2 & Bk 1218
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZZT—=F R NA=1+HILFE

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill relevant to E-Perfect
Group

The recoverable amount of the provision of
professional IT confract services business of the
E-Perfect Group has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management of the
Company. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 15% and cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 3%.

Key assumptions are used in the value in use
calculation of the business of the provision of
professional IT contracts service business of the
E-Perfect Group as at 30 June 2013. The following
describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Gross margin FEF =
Growth rate #E &
Discount rate B3R R

Management determined the budgeted gross-margin
based on past performance and its expectation for
market development. The weighted average growth
rates used are based on the industry research. The
discount rates used are pre-tax that reflected current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific risks relating to the relevant
segments.

No impairment loss was provided on goodwill relevant
fo the provision of professional IT contract services
business of the E-Perfect Group as its recoverable
amount is higher than the carrying amount of the
goodwill as at 30 June 2013.
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. Hitt B EE
Group AEH

Other

Online sales infangible
platforms assets Total
BEX5TR HeBPEE CE
HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000
THT AT THT

(note (a)) (note (b))
(W& (a)) (M3 (b))

30 June 2013 “E-=Z£XA=tH
At 1 July 2012 R-B——#+F-A
Cost B 23,160 - 23,160
Accumulated amortisation REtE - - -
Net carrying value REFE 23,160 - 23,160
At 1 July 2012, net of W-E——&#+f—H"
accumulated amortisation ks ZaH 83 23,160 - 23,160
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEN B AR
(note 32) (PH2£32) - 27,823 27,823
Impairment during the year RAEERE
(note 6) GED) (19,260) - (19,260)
At 30 June 2013 RZE—=F A=+H 3,900 27,823 31,723
At 30 June 2013 RZE—=F A=+H
Cost B 3,900 27,823 31,723
Accumulated amortisation ZEt#H - - -
Net carrying value REFE 3,900 27,823 31,723

’EPRO Limited 2 EEFR A F
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZZT—=F R NA=1+HILFE

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16. HWEEEE »)

Group AEH
Online sales
platforms
WEXHFAE
HK$” 000
FAET
(note (a))
(FFEE(a))
30 June 2012 —E—-HXA=TH
At 1 July 2011 RZTE——F+A—H
Cost %N =
Accumulated amortisation Rt =
Net carrying value REHE =
At 1 July 2011, net of RZT——F+tH—H"
accumulated amortisation Nk REtHEH -
Additions 0 3,900
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) L B B 8 2 B) (B aE32) 19,260
At 30 June 2012 RZT—Z—FA=+H 23,160
At 30 June 2012 RZT—Z—FA=+H
Cost B AR 23,160
Accumulated amortisation s 3 -
Net carrying value BREHE 23,160
Notes: B &
(o) Amount represents two online sales platforms for (a) RZE——FA=+RILFER H

frading of merchandises through Internet acquired by
the Group during the year ended 30 June 2012.

As detailed in note 15a to the consolidated financial
statement, the Group made a full impairment on the
carrying amount of one of its online sales platforms
relevant to the MIC Platform of subsidiaries amounted
to HK$19,260,000 during the year. The fair value of the
remaining online sales platform relevant to business
fo customers e-commerce industry has been assessed
by Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, an
independent valuer, as at the end of the reporting
period.

No impairment of the online sales platform relevant to
business to customers e-commerce industry has been
provided as the fair value of the online sales platform
is higher than its carrying amount at the end of the
reporting period.
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Group (Continued)

16. HWEREEE »)
REE(E)

Notes: (Continued) MisE - (&)

(b) Other intangible assets, which were represented (b) HthEmP EEREASBFBINEER
(i) certain computer softwares, (the “Softwares”); MG 2 ()BEE R e ([8EF])
and (ii) the customers relationship (the “Customers RNEFBER((EPBEE] -ELH
Relationship”) acquired through business HRAFER —LEFITEBMIRER
combination. The Softwares are used for the BhamPnEr - BFBERETERER
development of tailor-made programs to its customers ERERBEPERNBER -
and the Customers Relationship represents certain
contractual relationship with its existing customers at
the date of acquisition.

The fair value of the Softwares and the Customers RBEHRER  ZEHHREFPBEF
Relationship has been assessed by Ascent Partners ZATED BB EEMNATEZ A
Valuation Service Limited, an independent valuer, as BRRAT G c RIEHR - R B
at the end of the reporting period. No impairment of EEFPBEERzZATFERRERAE &
the Softwares and the Customers Relationship has W EERBERE -
been provided as its fair value is higher than the
carrying amount as at the end of the reporting period.
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A 17. RK B A 8 & = 12 &4 5%
CONTROLLED SPECIAL PURPOSE ENTITY B AR ZEKRE
Company
NN
2013 2012
—EB—=F —E——4F
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRG - EAKA 45,459 45,459
Capital contribution in respect HTEIRMEEZ
of employee share-based & (M5E30)
compensation (note 30) 2,721 2,721
48,180 48,180
Impairment B E (22,820) (22,820)
Investments in subsidiaries and RHE AR RZEGRSKRE
a controlled special purpose entity BRARIZIRE 25,360 25,360
Due from subsidiaries and JRE i BT B B R B 4% o R R B
a controlled special purpose entity SKIEH) A 7 180,932 181,510
Impairment of amounts due JRE s B B B B AR R Bk B
from subsidiaries and B2 B RIE R E B
a controlled special purpose entity (27.849) (39.849)
Due from subsidiaries and FE W BT B A A R X FE R ok B
a controlled special purpose BN R RIBE MR R A
entity, net of impairment 153,083 141,661

The balances with subsidiaries and a controlled
special purpose entity are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

B AR MEEGEIRE R RERAE
HR - B NERETEENS -

EPRO Limited S EHR A F
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZZT—=F R NA=1+HILFE

CONTROLLED SPECIAL PURPOSE ENTITY

(Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name

2R

ePRO (BVI) Limited

EPRO Computer Systems
(Beijing) Company Limited
BERZG (LR ERAA
(notes a & d) (Fizakd)

EPRO Systems (China) Limited
HEZG(TE)ERDA

EPRO Systems (HK) Limited
SEES(FE)BRATF

EPRO Systems (S) Pte. Limited
(note d) (fi{ztd)

EPRO Technology Limited
HENBARAR

’ ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F &

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and
operations

BT
EREEEEB 2 HE

British Virgin Islands
RBRAHE

PRC
e

Hong Kong
BR

Hong Kong
AR

Singapore
g

Hong Kong
Ak

Nominal value

of issued and
fully paid share
capital/registered
share capital
2RTR
HRBAE/
R A

ZEE

Nil
&

US$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T
(2012: US$700,000)
(2012: 700,000%7T)

HK$925,000
925,0007% 7

HK$100,000
100,000/ 7

§$400,000
400,000 1% 7T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000/ 7

17. R B D B & 3212 645 5

BENARZRE #)

TEMBRARZFHBET

Percentage

of issued
capital/registered
capital held

by the Company
HEAREE
ZBEfT

BA /R
EXEAH
Direct  Indirect
BEE M

100 -

Principal activities

TEXE

Investment holding
REER

Provision of professional
[T confract and
maintenance services
REEZEAANFEEY
REERS

Investment holding and
provision of professional
IT confract and
maintenance services
BARRIRESRA
REAHREERS

Investment holding and
provision of professional
IT contract and
maintenance services
RAERRRHEEXAR
REAHOREERS

Provision of professional
IT contract and
maintenance services
REZXER/E
BHRAEERS

Provision of professional
IT contract and
maintenance services
REZFEANEK
BHREERS
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A 17. R B 2 8 & = 12 4|45 5

CONTROLLED SPECIAL PURPOSE ENTITY BRI ZRE #)
(Continued)
Nominal value Percentage
Place of of issued and of issued
incorporation/ fully paid share  capital/registered
establishment and  capital/registered capital held
Name operations share capital by the Company Principal activities
BETR HARREE
BREA/ BB
BRI/ R A BA/E
£ EMREEER 2 ZHfE EXEAM TEXK
Direct  Indirect
EE B#&
Shanghai EPRO Software PRC US$200,000 S 90 Provision of professional
Company Limited (notes b & d) i 200,000% 7t IT contract and
LBGBRHERAR maintenance services
(W Fokd) REZFEAMR
BRREERE
EPRO E-commerce Group Limited Brifish Virgin Islands Us$100 100 - Investment holding
(note d) (Miid) RERUER 100% 7T REER
EPRO E-commerce Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Provision of professional
SEESFEBERAR B% 100 7T IT contract and

maintenance services and
E-commerce and provision
of online sales platform

REZEEABR

Al RBEERER

ETABRREBLIHETR

Jiangsu Weipu Technical Service PRC HK$6,000,000 N 75 Provision of professional
Co., Limited (notes b & d) i 6,000,000/ 7t IT contract and
TEGERTREER R (MioRkd) mainfenance services
REBXEAREAN

R#BR%

EPRO E-commerce Limited United Kingdom GBP50,000 - 100 E-commerce and provision
(note d) (fifzEd) S 50,0002 £ of online sales platform

EYEBRREBLHEETS

Geekdigg Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
EREUREEERAA B 10,0007 7T REE
S5EER)EERMBERAT PRC US$100,000 - 100 E-commerce and
(nofes a & d) (M Fakd) # 100,000% 1T provision of online
sales platform

EFHEBR

REBLEETAR

’EPRO Limited 2 EEFR A F
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZZT—=F R NA=1+HILFE

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A 17. R B A 7 & = 2 4|45 5

CONTROLLED SPECIAL PURPOSE ENTITY BENRARIZRE &)
(Continued)
Nominal value Percentage
Place of of issued and of issued
incorporation/ fully paid share  capital/registered
establishment and capital/registered capital held
Name operations share capital by the Company Principal activities
BETR HAARBE
BRERA/ BB
BRI/ BRI B/
£ aAMREEXB 2 HH ZHEfE BXEAN TEXK
Direct Indirect
i &
e-Perfect IT Limited (note c) Hong Kong HK$10,000 o 100 Provision of professional
EEHEERAR (i) 5% 10,0005 7T IT contract and

maintenance services

REZXEAMBRAORELRY

e-Perfect Information Technology PRC RMB500,000 S 100 Provision of professional
(Shenzhen) Limited (notes a, ¢ & d) H 500,000\ B # IT contract and
EEEERE (RN BRAR maintenance services
(FfzEa. ckd) RUFLEAMREOREBRE
Notes: B 5
(a) This subsidiary is registered as a wholly-foreign owned (@) %%WEQEEEEE‘] BUA M RS
enterprise under the PRC law. HMBERX -
(b) This subsidiary is registered as a foreign investment (b) I}tWEQE@T)’iEF BARERAINGE
enterprise under the PRC law. Ao
©) This subsidiary is newly acquired during the year. © L S B8 2 R AR AR 47 [ T IR R
(d) Not audited by Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited. (d) WIMREEG G EBHERAF
ETEERT
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, ESRA LRAMIGEDANER A E R
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results %Kffﬁ%%ﬁﬂ%ﬁkK%ﬁE%ﬁﬁf}i%aﬁ
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets 7 7§$573F5 I EMME AR NEEES
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in fRIEBNITE
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

’ ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F &
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

CONTROLLED SPECIAL PURPOSE ENTITY

(Continued)

Apart from the above subsidiaries, the Group has a controlled
special purpose entity during the year ended 30 June 2013

and its information is as follows:

17. R B D B & 322 645 5

BENRARIZRE &)

BEdMBRARN RZF-—=F<A=1H
FER AEE-RXEHBRENRAE H
BERERMT

Nominal value Percentage
Place of of issued and of issued
incorporation/ fully paid share capital/registered
establishment and capital/registered capital held
Name operations share capital by the Company Principal activities
BETR HAXRRE
BHERE/ ZBET
HMERE/ HRRE RA& /R
£ AMREEEB 2B ZHEE BXESL TEEH
Direct Indirect
HE CE:3
Beijing HuaKai Fugui Information PRC RMB8,700,000 - - Provision of online sales platform
Technology Limited HE 8,700,000A R & REUEBIHETA
EREREEESRMARAR
(note d & e) (Fiztdke)
e) Beijing Huakai Fugui Information Technology Limited (e) TREREERELEMAERRA (M1

("Beijing Huakai Fugui”) is a special purpose entity
conftrolled by the Group. The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of Beijing
HuaKai Fugui and is required to consolidate its result
into the consolidated financial statements of the
Group in according with HK(SIC) Int12 - Consolidation -

Special Purpose Entities.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

At end of year: RARF L
Unlisted shares, at cost FE LR AR
Share of net assets DMEEEFE
Impairment B

Due to associates

EPRO Limited S EHR A F

RIEAEE]D) 2R - HZEHSKRE D
RE - ARBEERRAEEEEESD
ERIERZTENM B REERE  RE
EAEMBRERERREZECE
125E-B H-HHR BN R B ZHE °

18. REEE N Rz

Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
F#ET FHET
493 493
(58) 18)
(€)) ©)
432 472
- (294)
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZZT—=F R NA=1+HILFE

gy — a2z .
18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. REtE QR 2= (@)
Particulars of the principal associates are as follows: FEBERRZHBEHINMOT
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ ownership
Business registration interest attributable
Name structure and operations to the Group Principal activities
AL FRREE AEBfEE
A8 E$ 2T EB2HE REEZAAL FTEER
2013 2012
—E-=f ~-—T-——F
ePROgistics Limited (note (a)) Corporate Hong Kong 30 30 Provision of logistic IT
SENRREABRAR (M) A7 B contract services
REDTEARBEE ORE
eSilk Road Import & Export Corporate Hong Kong 49 49 Provision of E-business
Limited (note (b)) (KI5 (b)) NS B RESFILLEEE

Notes: Bt & -

(@) No financial information had been provided as (@) SEYMRNMBRERAREE_SZLF
ePROgjistics Limited had commenced a deregistration ETHEEFRALE T EMBER R -
process in year 2007 and is sfill in process at the date HERREVBHRRBER - &FHED
of these consolidated financial statements. TEHTH -

(b) eSilk Road Import & Export Limited was acquired by (b) RZE——FRXA—H ARAFKN
the Company on 1 June 2011 at a consideration of 490,000 7t fig AeSilk Road Import
HK$490,000. & Export Limited °

The above associates were not audited by Ascenda A EBERRWIFRRBELSETMER

Cachet CPA Limited. FIERARIEZ -

The Group’s inferests in the associates were indirectly REERBERRZERNEREEWRE

held through wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Group AEHERE AEBHER—A L

was entitled to the same percentage of voting power RERINEERADLLARES BA -

and profit sharing as denoted in the ownership

percentage.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial T & B iteSilk Road Import & Export

information of eSilk Road Import & Export Limited Limited z B 1§ & RHE 25 8 R B Mm*x

extracted from its financial statements:

2013 2012

—B—=F —E——%F

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FTHET FHET

Assets BE 482 264
Liabilities B & (1,020) 721

Revenues gz 501 1,141

(Loss)/Profit for the year REFZ (BE) BF 1) 12

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F &
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALES INVESTMENT 19.
Unlisted funds at fair value FEMES  ZAFE
Unlisted shares, at cost FJE LR - AR
Impairment E
Net carrying amount at RAFREZ REFE

end of year

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Group
disposed of the unlisted funds at a consideration
of HK$47,702,000 and a loss of approximately
of HK$3,024,000 (note 6) was recognised in the
consolidated income statement, of which, HK$286,000
was reclassified from other comprehensive income to
the consolidated income statement.

20. INVENTORIES 20.
Contract work in progress HEITHRZEHTRE
Merchandise for sale 15 55 7 o
At the end of the reporting period, the inventories of

the Group carrying at net realisable value amounted
to approximately HK$2,000 (2012: HK$2,000).

’EPRO Limited 2 EEFR A F

AHHERE
Group
AEME
2013 2012
—B—=F —E—_F
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET FHET
317 317
(317) (317)

RIB-—"FRA=ZTRLEFE £T&EH
IA47,702,000 T H €3 EH R A 2 KR
& - H1H & & %5 493,024,000/ T (P
6) & 7 /R286,000/% It B A b 2 H W &
EMIIAGZEEER -

7E
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—EFE-—= —ZF—=
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FH&ERT FHET
42 2
42 2
RB|ERR  AEBRA]FRFEI R
FEH /2000 T (ZF— =% :2,000
BIT) °
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZZT—=F R NA=1+HILFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables

Due from contract customers
(note a)

Impairment

Note (a):

Contract work in progress:
Confract costs incurred plus
recognised profits less
recognised losses to date
Less: Progress billings

Gross amount due from
contract customers

21

W B 5 Bk
et A wE P (Kita)

BB

iz (a) -

#ATE2 ANTHE
B AL 2 & KO
ME R AR
RHRBA
R E AR

FEU & #F P SRR

The movements in provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

At 1 July

Impairment losses recognised
(note 6)

Reversal of impairment (note 5)

Amount written off as uncollectible

Exchange realignment

At 30 June

BEA—H

B R R (E (Fif5E6)
B mEE (P 3E5)
By TR IR Z 5R0A
I 3§

RANA=+H

Except for E-commerce and new customers, the
Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, where payment in advance is normally
required. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. In view of the aforementioned
and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to diversified customers, there is no significant
concenfration of credit risk. Trade receivables are

non-interest bearing.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F &

. BRE B R

Group
AEH
2013 2012
—B—=F —E——F
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FAT
81,131 57,547
13.496 14,520
(1.865) (1,648)
92,762 70,419
20,051 15,400
(6.555) (880)
13,496 14,520
NTREWE ZEFREEH
Group
rEE
2013 2012
== —E-—F
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
FHERT FHET
1,648 1,936
173 -
- (296)
- (13)
44 21
1,865 1,648
RTEFEBREFIZLIN REFBEAER

FzBSERITEREELA -2 HERE
[ Mma B - BN DR IE LA
SEZERYSRFRDESBMEFPERH - B
BEREERARETZER - BRUERS

Tite o
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As detailed in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, a full payment in advance is normally
required for E-commerce customers. Therefore, there is
no significant credit risk for E-commerce business.

The Group’s terms on credit sales primarily range from
30 to 180 days (2012: 30 to 180 days).

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

Current BN ER

31 - 60 days 31 - 60K

61 - 90 days 61 - 90K

91 - 180 days 91 - 180k
Over 180 days 838180k

The aged analysis of the frade receivables that are
not (neither individually nor collectively) considered to
be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired
Less than 1 month past due

1 to 3 months past due

3 fo 6 months past due

Over 6 months

KRB FRRE
BHIR—EA
BH-==A
BB==xAEA
Haid <8 A

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

’EPRO Limited 2 EEFR A F

21.

FEWE SRR 2

AN EE265 0 - EF BB ZEF —RA
EHEELENK REFTABLEPALESE
REERR -

AEEZRFEHR — MK BHIOKEIBOKRT
FE(ZFT——4:30KE180XK) °

RBEYR BERAMFAEZRNRES
BRRZREBEDMTAT

Group

EEEH
2013 2012
—B—=F —ET——F
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHERT FHET
88,780 68,844
601 237
780 99
2,516 658
85 581
92,762 70,419

WIERABE (TR ERRERRE) 2 &
WE BERRREOMMT

Group

AEH
2013 2012
—E—=f —E——%F
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET
88,123 68,785
1,171 212
894 184
2,489 798
85 440
92,762 70,419

I 45 380 H 7 R O (E 2 T MR AR 3 B T R e
RIBSFZDEBEP ZRHK »
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. EWEZ RN
Receivables that were past due but not impaired BEERBEZERKEAREEEE R4
relate to customers that have a good track record with CEHZEFPFEBE REBELER BRE
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of BEEZUWEESAEE  MEFEHDES
the Company are of the opinion that no provision for BU2HKE  WARBESRALAR
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances WEEHRELRERE AEETEFRI
as there has not been a significant change in credit EHEBFEEMNERARIEMRREE -

quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over these balances.

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22. F{tZhE - 24 R E b fE

RECEIVABLES U Fh 18

Group

A%E
2013 2012
—B—=fF —ZT——F
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000

Company
PN
2013 2012
—B—=f5 —ZT—-F
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000

FEx FEL FEx FEL
Prepayments B RIE 1,254 1,130 77 75
Trade deposits BHRE 52,345 84,008 - -
Deposits and other 2o K& H e R
receivables 45,907 61,107 204 24
99.506 146,245 281 99
None of the above assets is either past due or BMEL LEERBBRE RE - Ll
impaired. The financial assets included in the above PREZeMEEDEGIVERBRLE 2
balances relate to receivables for which there was no FEWGRBE -

recent history of default.
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

23. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 23. #RAF@EFABH LS
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS NAIRERE
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E-=fF T F
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
F#ET FHET
Listed equity investments, BEELTZzeRKRE -
at market value in mRmEFHE
Hong Kong 2,585 2,353
The fair values of the equity investments as at 30 June RZBE—=FXA=1TH @aKEZR
2013 were determined based on the quoted market TEDBBEAIRERIFMES 2 MRERE
bid prices available on The Stock Exchange. JE e

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 24. & KRB ESEEEHERD

=,
PLEDGED DEPOSITS LR N
Group Company
rEE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=f T =ZB-=F —T—_—_F
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000 HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FTER FET FTEx FHET
Cash and bank balances* Re RRITHEH 80,376 123,063 135 3,638
Time deposits TEHER 7.910 10,920 - =
88,286 133,983 135 3,638
Less: Pledged time deposits - RERBLIRTT
for securing banking BMEmMER 2
facilities THER (7.910)  (10,920) £ .
Cash and cash equivalents ReRHE&EEER 80,376 123,063 135 3,638
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and REHR AEBUARBBENZ
bank balances of the Group denominated in Ne NIRITHEEE16,653,0008 T (=&
Renminbi (*RMB*) amounted to HK$16,653,000 (2012: — — % : 18,000,000/ 5T) » A R R A
HK$18,000,000). RMB is not freely convertible into IABBRAEBRBEMINE - AT RBEAK
other currencies. However, under the PRC’s Foreign FRNESERAIRGEE EERMNES
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of IBIE  ANEEEEBBEREETINE
Seftlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange X5 2 RITHE AR X i 5 H {th 4N o

Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

’EPRO Limited 2 EEFR A F
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (continued)

Included in the cash and cash equivalents as at 30
June 2013 was US$20,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$156,000) (2012: US$2,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$15,600,000)) being amount freezed
by Paypal since August 2012 as the Group was
involved in a litigation (note 37).

The banking facilities of the Group were secured by:

() corporate unlimited guarantee executed by the
Company during the years end 30 June 2013
and 2012; and

(i) the Group’s time deposits amounting

to approximately HK$7,910,000 (2012:
approximately HK$10,920,000) as at 30 June
2013.

TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of trade payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on payment due date, is
as follows:

Current B ER

31 - 60 days 31 - 60k
61 - 90 days 61 - 90K
Over 90 days HAEOK

DEPOSITS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE

Normally, a full payment in advance is required from
E-commerce customers (the “e-Customers”) upon
placing orders. As at 30 June 2013, the deposits
received in advance of approximately HK$20,919,000
(2012: approximately HK$24,885,000) represented
deposits received from the e-Customers for
merchandises delivered by the Group subsequent to
the end of the reporting period.

’ ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F &
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24.

25.

26.

HeRBEEEEEBERD
KR FERR @)

MM E37sm R BE—=FE A=+
AzR& REBITHEHA - 20,0003 T
(I8 % #156,0008 L) (Z & — —4F
2,000,0002 7t (8% %915,600,000/% Jt.)
& BB (Paypal) &84 - REBIEES
— R MuRAESRE -\ KA
Z (Paypal) & # o

AREEZIRITHETIA TS BEREA -

0) RZE—=FR=_F—ZFA
=t+tH ARRELZEREAR
AER &

RIE—=ZFNA=ZTHAEEN
EHEFR2ETEHEL7,910,000
B (ZF— =4 : £710,920,000
BT e

BN E 5 IR

P B 5 8RS i B R 0 B R A 3R E) )
Btz R T

(i)

Group

rEE
2013 2012
—E-=F T F
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FHT
1,522 1,442
1,139 116
- 34
271 5,050
2,932 6,642

Bz E

EfRKzcgr (EFEFRP)) —RERE
BENR2BIEANR - R _F—=F XA
=THIE ZEFEPREHL20,919.000
TE— T4 424,885,000/ 7T) R 1AW
RERE AKECRGEERAREEEE
mEREREP -
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 10 August 2010, the Company issued fwo zero
coupon convertible notes (collectively, referred to
as "CNs") with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$225,000,000. The CNs, which did not bear interest,
were convertible into the shares of the Company at
a conversation price of HK$0.05 per share and were
matured after three years from the date of issuance.
During the year ended 30 June 2011, cerfain of
the CNs with an aggregate principal amount of
approximately HK$213,416,000 had been converted
into 4,268,320,000 ordinary shares of the Company.
The remaining CNs of approximately HK$11,584,000
were also converted into 231,680,000 ordinary shares
of the Company during the year ended 30 June 2012.

The principal amount of the CNs was split between the
liability component and equity component, as follows:

Liability component & &EIBH
At beginning of year REFE Y]

Notional interest charged (note a)

Converted into ordinary shares AR NE LB
of the Company

At end of year REFL

Equity component EEE D

At beginning of year INGEE)

Converted info ordinary shares R AR QBT BR
of the Company

At end of year NG

Nofte:

(a) Pursuant to the terms of the CNs, no interest were

payable by the Company fo the CN holders. The
notional interest charged only represented an
accounting inferest calculated at an effective interest
rate of which no actual payment was incurred by the
Company.

EPRO Limited S EHR A F

HENBER (MiZa)

27. TRRREE

RZZF-—FFNA+TH RNRBHTM
19 7N & %8 $£3£225,000,0005%8 7T 2 1 M &5
MERMBRER (GEIATBRER]D -
ABRBREEARE - AR BESR0.05
BLTRBRBARARNORRETHH
EB=FRIP - RBEE_FT——F XA
=STHRLEFE SFOAURREELSED
213,416,000/ 7T B ¥ 54,268,320,000
BARBEBR NR_T—_FXA
STRLEFE FHRZABAREED
11,584,0007% 7T 71 E # # /231,680,000
RARB EBAR -

AERERRERzASERBERD RERE
Dz EH D RIT

Group and Company

EEEREDT
2013 2012
—B—=fF —E—_F
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET FHET
- 10,567
- 30
- (10,597)
- 1,360
- (1,360)

GEX

(a) RIBRIBRER ZGX > RELENE
XNRARERBERAA o M L5 &
ZRERRERE 2 LN AERF R
HHERZAE  RRAIRREER N Z
FB o
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27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

28.

The fair value of the liability component of the
CNs were calculated by an independent valuer,
based on the estimated discounted cash flow
over the remaining confractual terms of the CNs
and discounted using a market interest rate for an
equivalent non-convertible notes. The discount rate
of the liability component of the CNs was 4.27%. The
residual amount, representing the value of the equity
conversion component, was included in shareholders’
equity under “Equity component of convertible notes”.

The inputs into the model were as follows:

Stock price % B
Expiration EIH A
Risk-free rate 2 Ja B M)
Volatility R
DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 July »ntEA—H

Deferred tax charged to FAFFAGEREERZ
consolidated income statement IEEFL IR
during the year (FFEE10)
(note 10)

At 30 June RANA=+H

The above deferred tax liabilities represented taxable
temporary differences arising from amount due from
contract customers (note 21).

’ ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F &

27. TEREE &)

BERD 2 AFEABIEEIRER
AHRERZBTANIHAMGAMRR
EmatE  WRBETABRRREZ TS
MEBRR - AIMBRRBR AR O 2R
RA27% - Mtr e (AR L ME D 2B
BRI MEREESHLS IETZRR
e 5 ARSI -

R8T
CNs
G e 27
10 August
2010
(issuance date)
—T-FF
NA+H
(EfTHED
HK$0.697% 7T
3 years4E
0.53%
53%
28. EELEBLIIR
EEHIEREE
Group
EE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$’ 000 HK$” 000
FHET FHET
7,700 1,900
2,000 5,800
9,700 7.700

FHBEERBEELSHAREREOERLK
B(ME22)EE 2R EER -
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DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets

The principal components of the Group’s deferred
tax assets not recognised calculated at deferred tax
rates in Hong Kong, Singapore, United Kingdom and
the PRC at 16.5% (2012: 16.5%), 18% (2012: 18%),
20% (2012: 20%), 25% (2012: 25%), respectively, on
cumulative temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period, are as follows:

Tax losses MigEE
Accelerated depreciation mRTERTHEE

allowances

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
fotal tax losses arising in Hong Kong and Singapore of
approximately HK$60,560,000 (2012: HKS$51,744,000),
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. The Group did not have tax losses arising
in the PRC that are available for offsetting against the
following five years’ taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose (2012: Nil). Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some fime.

At 30 June 2013, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities (2012: Nil) for
tfaxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries or
associates.

EPRO Limited S EHR A F

28.

EERIE ()

ELEBEEE

ERBRERRZRFTBREZE BESR
BN RBERFPREZEERES R
B16.5% (ZF——F :16.5%) - 18% (=
T-ZF18%) 20% (=T — ZF:
20%) ~25% (ZZE——_4F :25%) ' st&

AEERBERZELERBEEZETEXD
UM

Group
AEME

2013 2012

—E—=F —E—_F

HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000

FHERT FAT

9,813 7,918

9 6

9.794 7.924

RBERR REBREFBERFNEE
R B R D 5 4)60,560,0008 7T (—F
— % :51,744,000% jT) A] RN EH
AR ZERBEN - AR BB ER S E
EXAAREHEZS AR ERAFRERN
MM RBER(ZE——F &) @R
ZEERXRBEBER -RERZMER
A A ER U R IR E E T

RZZ—Z=ZFA=+H AEELER
ETHEARSBE AR ZAELZME
Nz BRBEmMARERE /2 AERRER
FRE(ZT—ZF: §)



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

29. SHARE CAPITAL

Notes
ik
Authorised : EE:
At 1.July, ordinary shares RtA—R EREE
of HK$0.01 each 0018 BBk
At 30 June, ordinary shares RARZ1R SREE
of HK$0.01 each 001z EER
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR:
At 1 July, ordinary shares RtA-B BREE
of HK$0.01 each 001z EER
Exercise of share options Tk ke (a)
Conversion of shares from BRTHREE
convertible notes ETRS (o)
Repurchase and cancellation EEREERD
of shares (©)
At 30 June, ordinary shares RAA=Z1R:
of HK$0.01 each SREEIOET L EBR

(a) During the year ended 30 June 2012, certain
share option holders exercised their option
rights to subscribe for an aggregate of
3,920,000 ordinary shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each at an exercise price of HK$0.43
per share. The net proceeds of HK$1,685,600
was fully applied as working capital of the
Group during the year ended 30 June 2012.

’ ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F &
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Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZZT—=F R NA=1+HILFE

29. B
2013 2012
“B-=f& —E-CF

Number Nominal Number Nominal
of shares value of shares value
RB#A HE LSO AE
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
TER THT
10,000,000,000 100,000  10,000,000,000 100,000
10,000,000,000 100,000  10,000,000,000 100,000
5,313,599,570 53,136 5,211,499,570 52,115
- - 3,920,000 39
- - 231,680,000 2,317
(219,084,000) (2191) (133,500,000 (1,335)
5,094,515,570 50,945  5313,599,570 53,136

(@) RZZ—=ZFXA=+tHLFE "

MOBRERSEATEREEBRE
Mo AEBRO4AZBTLITEERES
#£3,920,000/% & % E E0.017%8 T
ZARBEBEBD KRZT—=
FRNA=ZTALFEE AEEH
7 % AR % P 15 71,685,600 7T B
AEAEBEZEEES -
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

®)

©

During the year ended 30 June 2011, the
Group issued convertible notes with principal
amount of HK$225,000,000 ("CN"), of which
HK$213,416,000 had been converted into
4,268,320,000 ordinary shares of the Company
of HK$0.01 each at a conversion price of
HK$0.05 per share during the year ended 30
June 2011. The remaining CN with principal
amount of HK$11,584,000 were converted into
231,680,000 ordinary shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each at a conversion price of HK$0.05
per share during the year ended 30 June 2012.
The net proceeds of the CN was applied to the
sefting up and development of e-commerce
business and general working capital.

0) During the year ended 30 June
2012, 133,500,000 ordinary shares
of the Company of HK$0.01 each
were repurchased and cancelled
by the Company at an aggregate
cash consideration of approximately
HK$146,402,000. Details of which are as

29. B& (#)

follows:

Number of Highest
shares price paid
Month/year repurchased per share
X8
%/B% EERAGHEE HReEEREK
"000 shares HK$
T B
September 2011 —Z——%h A 15,000 1.040
October 2011 —E——%1A 20,000 0.960
November 2011 —Z——F+—A 32,500 1.160
February 2012 —ZE——%—-# 66,000 1.200

133,500

Pursuant to section 37 of the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, an amount equivalent
fo the par value of the shares cancelled of
HK$1,335,000 was transferred from the retained
profits to the capital redemption reserve. The
premium paid on repurchase of shares of
HK$145,067,000 was charged to the share
premium account.

’EPRO Limited 2 EEFR A F

®)

©

Lowest
price paid
per share
IS E LY
BESRER

R-ZZE——FRA=+TRHILFE
7 55 [ 2 17 7K & $H225,000,0007%
T AMREE ([T ]mRER])
N4 213,416,000 T 2 7] # A%
EER_ZT——FXNA=THIE
FEAERRLHRESR0OSET
R 7N A F14,268,320,000/%
FREE0.0VE T Z BB -
7X@ ¥11,584,000% JT 2 # &4 A
BREBR_Z—Z_FA=+
HIEFE AR N % EFO0.05
8 7L H R R 7K ) B)231,680,000
fi% & A% E {E0.0178 7T 2 % i R iR
Al BRI EE 2 MBRIEBFR
AREYURBERETFHABEBR
ERAEE-—REEES -

() R-BE——&XxA=+AH
LEE AARRARS
1 {8 #7146,402,000/5 7 i
@l % 3% §%133,500,000% 5
REEO0.01E T LiEAR -
HEMT

Total
consideration
(before
expense)
RELH
(XREMA)
HKS HK$"000
BT FEL

Total
consideration
(including

expense)
RELH
(BfEER)
HK$" 000
TEL

0.890
0.870
1.070
1.100

15,143
18,637
36,432
75,503

15,199
18,749
36,596
75,858

145,715 146,402

ARBEKEREES(RAE)
E37F ERERCEHBR M E
{EE91,335,000/% 7T 1 £R B )i H 8
ABAREEE - B8RO X
#9345 (8145,067,0007% 7T 2 £ IR
1038 B HIER ©
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

©) (i) During the year ended 30 June
2013, 219,084,000 ordinary shares
of the Company of HKS$0.01 each
were repurchased and cancelled
by the Company at an aggregate
cash consideration of approximately
HK$112,572,000. Details of which are as

29. BA& ()

follows:

Number of Highest
shares price paid
Month/year repurchased per share
S ;]
£%/AH EERGHE EEERER
'000 shares HKS
T’ BT
November 2012 —F——F+—# 60,036 0.640
December 2012 —ZE——4%+—-f 19,372 0.600
March 2013 —2-=%=A 119,676 0.480
April 2013 —Z—-=FNA 20,000 0.455

219,084

Pursuant to section 37 of the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, an amount equivalent
tfo the par value of the shares cancelled of
HK$2,190,840 was fransferred from the retained
profits to the capital redemption reserve. The
premium paid on repurchase of shares of
HK$110,381,000, in which, as to HK$109,913,000
was charged to the share premium account
and the remaining balance of HK$468,000 was
directly charged to the retained profits.

’ ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F &

() (i) R-E—=6xA=+A
EFE ARANERE
R AB#9112,572,0007% T FE
Bl % 3% $4219,084,0008% &
JREEO0.01 B Tz ik o

FEIET

Total Total

Lowest consideration consideration
price paid (before (including
per share expense) expense)
iSZeg:s) RELE RELE
sESRER (XNEAH) (BIEER)
HKS HK$' 000 HK$" 000

B TAT THT

0.550 36,550 36,680
0.580 11,585 11,718
0.450 54,977 55,174
0.405 8,825 9,000
111,937 112,572

ARBERERSBHE(REED)D
37 ERERCEHKRMNE
B 892,190,840/ 7T B 1= & i 71| 8
ABAREEFE - T8RO X
- 89 )% 8 /110,381,000% 7T+ &
#1109,913,000/% 7t 2 £ f& 17 4 (B
IR o T H #22468,0008 TE
HEERBENDME -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and
the share options issued under the scheme and as
follows:

The Company, pursuant to a resolution passed on 12
February 2007, adopted a share option scheme (“the
Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to eligible participants for their
confribution fo the Group and/or fo enable the
Group fo recruit and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group and any entity in which the Group holds
any equity interest (the ‘Invested Entity”). Eligible
participants of the Share Option Scheme include
the directors and employees of the Company, its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity, suppliers and
customers of the Group or any Invested Entity, any
person or entity that provides research, development
or technological support fo the Group or any Invested
Entity, any adviser or consultant fo any area of
business or business development of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity, any joint venture
partner or business alliance that co-operates with
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity in
any area of business operation or development and
any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any Invested Enfity.
The Share Option Scheme should, unless otherwise
terminated or amended, remain in force for ten years
from 12 February 2007.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at 12 February 2007, being the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, (i.e.
not exceeding 24,012,000 shares of the Company).
The Company may seek approval of the shareholders
in a general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit
under the Share Option Scheme save that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company under the limit as ‘refreshed” shall not
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as
at the date of approval of the refreshed limit. Options
previously granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other schemes of the Company (including
those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised in
accordance with the Share Optfion Scheme and any
other schemes) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the limit.

EPRO Limited S EHR A F
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BRAETE

ARBBERES S MRIEZ ST HETZ
BREFBENT

ARBRER-_ZEZLF_A+ =08
B REREWERET S ([BRES
2l]) EESE SR ERE AL EEL &
ZEERSEER SR AEEREER
BREBEBREERTRMAEAEE R AEERR
ERABREZERB((REER)EEX
BEZANER -BREFEZAERKS
HEBEART  HEB AR S AEMEE
ERVEELEES AEERAMIKEE
BIOHERSES  EAAE RS EMR
WEBEREEMNE  HREARMTZEZA
THEE  AEETAKE QR KM
BEEBEBIEBERZAMNBE 2B
M AEAA - BAREBEEAKE AR E
A EEENEBLERER ZAMNGBE
AEZAEBHRERESE  UERAEE
T E AR R AMTERE ZIMBRE
FARNEBTAKE AR REMLEEE
BT ZARNEFZTAFHEA - BRRE
2 BRIESFURIERELT  BEH=-ZZ
+tE_A+-—RAE—EE®R AHTF-

1R 15 B8 AR A 5T 81 P I T BB AR 2 BR 1D 4B &L
TEBHARAR-_ZEZELF-_A+=H
B8 RMB BT ’RMD 210% (A
BB A A F]124,012,0000% fx 15) » AR
&) 7] gk 5 AR 4 B AR A AT 81 2 10%MR 58 M
BERAS 2SRRI E - ERITERE
B AR A B Ko AN D R AA) E A BE AR A AT B
iR Tz 2BEREMZRBECEHNREA
FRITZBRMDBABBIEBE R EEH
PREEAHE BITIRMAE 210% ° SLATIR
BB RE AT 2 AN A BMEA] E A At 219% B
ZHEBRE(BEZSENRTE BiEE
B 2R Rk AR iR B AR A At B R AR T A 5T B
BITHEZERE) SR EREmE T
ATEER -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares
in issue from time fto fime. The number of shares
issued and fo be issued in respect of which options
granted and may be granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding optfions)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at the date of grant.
Each grant of options to any director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder must be approved by
independent non-executive directors.

Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or any of their respective associates
would result in the shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options already
and fo be granted in excess 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital or with a value in excess of HKS5 million
must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

The offer of a grant of share options shall be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, save that
such period shall not be more than ten years from the
date of the offer of the share options subject to the
provisions for early termination set out in the Share
Option Scheme. There is no minimum period for which
an option must be held before the exercise of the
subscription right attaching thereto except otherwise
imposed by the board of directors. The exercise price
is determined by the directors of the Company but
may not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (jii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

As at 30 June 2013, there was no option outstanding
under the Share Option Scheme. No optfions were
granted/exercised/lapsed/cancelled under the Share
Option Scheme during the year.

As at the date of this annual report, the fotal number
of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme was 525,908,357, representing approximately
10% of the issued share capital of the Company.
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RESERVES

(@)

(®)

The Group

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MY R

Year ended 30 June 2013 HE=ZT—=F A A=THILFE

31. #fE
(a) KXEHE

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
the movements therein for the current and
prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 47
and 48 of this annual report.

The Company

1y 2011
Exercise of share opfions
Issue of shares on
conversion of
converfible notes
(note 27)
Repurchase and cancellation
of shares
Totol comprehensive (note 11)
income for the year
Payment of 2011 final dividends
Adjustment for 2011 finl
dividends (nofe (1))

A} 30 June 2012
and 1 July 2012
Repurchase and cancellation
of shares (note 29(c)(ii))
Total comprehensive
income for the year (nofe 11)

At 30 June 2013

FEBRRFEFRBEFEZFB
Ko H & B 8RR R AR AT 248
BzmaRagsx -

(b) &2
Equity
component Capital Proposed
Share premium Opfion  of convertible  redemption Retained final
account reserve notes reserve profits dividends Total
TRREE RAgE RERE
RiEEE  BRERE EEAH B REEA k& it
HKS'000 HKS" 000 HKS'000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Thn T Thn T ThT T T
21,462 2231 1360 - 2602 62,630 310225
3878 2231 - - - 1,647
9,640 - (1.360) 8,200
BERTERS
(145,007) 133 (1.339) (145,067)
FEEL2ENREE (hEN)
- - 3465 - 3465
- - (61,854) (61,854)
- 776 (718) -
H-§-ZERA=TRR
Z3-CELR-R 109913 - 133 5,448 - 116,696
AEREERS
(&29(c)(i) (109.913) - 2191 (2.659) - (110,381)
KEE22EYEAE
(W) - - 118,672 - 118,872
H-§-ZERR=1H - - 3,526 121,661 - 125,187

’EPRO Limited 2 EEFR A F
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(b) The Company (Continued)
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31. &
(b) EXAFH

Note:

(a) The adjustment for the 2011 final dividends
was due to the repurchase and cancellation
of 67,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company
prior fo the record date of the 2011 final
dividends which were not ranked for dividend
payment.

Share premium

The share premium account of the Company
includes premium arising from the new issue of
shares in the current and prior years netted of
share issue expenses.

Under section 34 of the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the special reserve and share
premium account is available for distribution
to shareholders subject to the provisions of the
Articles of Association of the Company and
no distribution may be paid to shareholders
out of the special reserve and share premium
account unless, immediately following the
dafe on which the distribution or dividend is
proposed to be paid, the Company shall be
able fo pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

During the year, the share premium account
has been fully utilised to set off against the
premium paid for repurchase of shares.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve account of the Company
includes the difference between the
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation
upon listing in July 2000 and the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange therefore.

Capital redemption reserve

Pursuant to section 37 of the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, an amount equivalent
tfo the par value of the shares cancelled
of HK$2,190,840 (2012: HKS$1,335,000) was
fransferred from the retained profits to the
capital redemption reserve. The premium
paid on the repurchase of the shares of
HK$110,381,000, in which, as to HK$109,913,000
(2012: HK$145,067,000) was charged to the
share premium account and the remaining
balance of HK$468,000 was directly charged to
the retained profits.
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BRE D BATRISE -

RIEFASBEE R ADEEIME
Bl et 18 B B0 g B BR AT R 0 R T
R AT EARRMAUZR
o BIE MBEEHZED RN
ERNEBEER®R KRB BEN
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATION

30 June 2013

32.

On 29 June 2012, the Group entered info a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party, pursuant to which, the Group acquired (the
"E-Perfect Acquisition”) 100% equity interest in (i)
e-Perfect IT Limited (“E-Perfect”) and its subsidiary,
e-Perfect Information Technology (Shenzhen) Limited
(collectively, referred as “E-Perfect Group”) at a cash
consideration of HK$45,000,000. The E-Perfect Group
is principally engaged in the provision of information
fechnology consultation services, provision of
corporate information solution architecture, design
and maintenance services and frading of computer
and equipment and accessories. The E-Perfect
Acquisition was completed on 3 July 2012.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of E-Perfect Group as at 3 July 2012, being the date of
E-Perfect Acquisition, were as follows:

Other intangible assets (note 16)
Property, plant and equipment (note 14)
Trade receivables

Prepayments and other receivables
Equity investments at fair value through

R U5 BR R

profit or loss BRERE
Tax recoverable TS B
Cash and bank balances e RiRITE

Accruals and other payables
Deferred revenue B E WA
Total identfifiable net assets at fair value
Goodwill (note 15) & (MsE15)

Cash consideration NREI M ZRE

’EPRO Limited 2 EEFR A F

HmpEE (M16)
W - BB MRS (EE14)

B B R A IR
BAFEHABEL ETAR

fEst B A R E A A BR AR

BAFEIRZ AT R#AIEEFELR

EBast
—g-=%AR=+A

RZE—ZFXAZ+hB AEEHE—
BBNE-FEANEBEHE REEEWH
FOASESWE ([EEKRE]) EERE
ERABREMBAFEEREERECF
I EBR AR (FHEEEEE]) 2100%&
Az {8 545,000,000/ T - THE %
Bz TEXBKAREHEMBMEBARRS -
RECEEAMR T RERE BT REE
REAREBEEMBRMEREM - ZTEU
BER-_ZT——F+tA=H=xK-

EEEEZAENEERABENR _T—=
FLAZR  EERERAHZATENT:

Fair value
recognised

on acquisifion
FU =R

[ /NS ]
HKS$" 000
FET

27,823
1,242
2,192

305

260
585
1,540
(2.928)
(1,863)

29,156
15,844

45,000
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATION (confinued) 32. ¥¥%86tm)

30 June 2013 (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the E-Perfect
Acquisition is as follows:

Cash consideration
Cash and bank balances acquired

Net outflow of cash and cash
equivalents included in cash
flows from investing activities

Following the completion of the acquisition, the
E-Perfect Group contributed HK$21,022,000 to the
Group’s turnover and profit of HK$7,653,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 30 June 2013
respectively.

Had the acquisition of E-Perfect Group been taken
place at the beginning of the year ended 30 June
2013, the revenue and profit of the Group for the
year would be increased by HK$21,022,000 and
HK$7,653,000, respectively.

30 June 2012

On 31 August 2011, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party, pursuant to which, the Group acquired (the
"Geekdigg Acquisition”) a 100% interest in Geekdigg
Limited ("Geekdigg”), and its subsidiaries together
known as the "Geekdigg Group”) at a consideration
of RMB 25,634,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$31,330,000). The Geekdigg Group is principally
engaged in provision of online sales platform
(the "MIC Platform”) to facilitate the trading of
merchandises between sellers and buyers through the
Internet platform.
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ZE-=ZfXA=tRH#E)
HEBNBFEAAZRSREONMT
2013
HK$’ 000
TER

45,000
(1,540)

AAREERHHREREZRS
ERSEEEERBFR

43,460

RRBERATRE  EEEERANEEE
E_E—ZFRNAZTHLEFEZEXR
N 7 & M 2 Bl & §i21,022,000% 7T &
7,653,000 7T °

HMERBEEEEBERRNBE_T—=F
NAZTRALEFEZNELE  AEBZ
W A Ko A g 9 Bl 421,022,000 7T &
7,653,000# 7T °

—®-=FXxA=+A

R-E-——F\A=+—H KAEHHE—
FWUYB=FFUEE R REEER
FoARERESWE (| KEE
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1B 7" AR ¥25,634,0007T (4948 % R
31,330,000 7T) - HRAIEEE T2 E
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FH e
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BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

30 June 2012 (Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Geekdigg Group as at 31 August 2011, being the
date of Geekdigg Acquisition, were as follows:

Other intangible assets (note 16)
Property, plant and equipment (note 14)
Trade receivables

Prepayments and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Accruals and other payables

Tax payable

Due to a director of the Geekdigg Group

Total identifiable net assets at fair value

Less: Capitalisation of the amount due to
a director of the Geekdigg Group

Goodwill (note 15)

Cash consideration

An analysis of the cash flows in respect

Geekdigg Acquisition is as follows:

Cash consideration
Cash and bank balances acquired

Net outflow of cash and cash
equivalents included in cash
flows from investing activities

’EPRO Limited 2 EEFR A F
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ZE2-ZEXRA=TRH#E)

FABEER _E——F \A=1t—H%A
AERE ARz AFERAT

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
MUEEETR
EREZATE
2012
HK$’ 000
FHET
HimpgE (H316) 19,260
M - BB RERE (ME14) 987
& W R 3K 1,047
TE T RRIA K E b AR R 479
Re RIRITHEH 5,419
B B R E A BN BE K (6.267)
TG €1
REFBEEZ EEHIE (796)
RATEIRZAIH#NEEFEERE 20,098
W BREFEEECES
HIABFTER 796
20,894
EEIEE)) 10,436
KRN Z2RE 31,330
of the HERMBEKEEEFRACERES TN
T
HK$’ 000
FHET
ReaRE 31,330
Pk Be RIRITEH (5.419)
AARERDRERECRS
RB e EEIEE R EFE
25,911
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BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
30 June 2012 (Confinued)

Following the completion of the Geekdigg Acquisition,
the Geekdigg Group contributed HK$1,301,000 tfo
the Group’s turnover and loss of HK$1,223,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 30 June 2012.

Had the Geekdigg Acquisition been taken place at
the beginning of the year ended 30 June 2012, the
revenue and profit of the Group for the year would
be increased by HKS$1,240,000 and HK$298,000,
respectively.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office properties and
staff quarters under operating lease arrangements.
Such leases are negotiated for the terms ranging from
one to three years.

At 30 June 2013, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth years, F_EERF
inclusive (BREEERWE)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company

At 30 June 2013 and 2012, the Company had
contingent liabilities in respect of corporate unlimited
guarantees for banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries. At the end of the reporting period, none
of such facilities were ufilised by its subsidiaries.

The Group
At 30 June 2013 and 2012, the Group did not have
any significant contingent liabilities.
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TT

REBOZH

ARERBEEBORFERSTHAE
MERBIRS - EHEZNEBENN
F-E=F-

R-ZE—=FR"A=1HB REFTAHH
KERY  AEBBRRATERINZ KR
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Group
AEME
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
FERT FAT
6,875 5,736
3,718 4,916
10,593 10,652
RAREE
NN

RZEBE—=FR_FT——FA=+8"
ARABHBETHEBRRMER ZRITHE
REERELFERMAEIAEBE - Nk
SHR AEMNBARVYESAZERE
B o

TEH
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

In addition to the balances detailed in note 18 fo the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the
following fransactions with related parties during the
year:

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

MEEE
BEERM

Total employee benefits paid to
key management personnel

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

LITIGATION

On 16 August 2012, the plaintiff (the “Plaintiff”), Klipsch
Group, Inc., filed a suit in the federal district court
(the "Court”) in the United States (the “U.S.") against
certain defendants, including one of the online sales
platforms (the “Subject Domain”) of the Group, in
respect of (i) trademark counterfeiting; (ii) trademark
infringement; and (iii) false designation of origin (the
“Litigation™). The Plaintiff claimed that certain products
(the “Klipsch-Branded Items”) were registered by them
in the U.S. and that infringing Klipsch-Branded Items
had been sold to customers in the U.S. via the Subject
Domain. The Plaintiff seeked damages, aftorneys’ fees
and sanctions. Hence, the Plaintiff instructed Paypal to
freeze US$2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,600,000) (the
"Frozen Amount”) from the Group’s Paypal account
on 27 August 2012.

On 21 September 2012, the Group filed sales
documents with the Court establishing that the
sales amount (the “Infringing Sales Amount”) of
the infringing Klipsch-Branded Items info the U.S.
amounted to less than US$700. The Court considered
that the Frozen Amount was excessive and
accordingly, the Court entered an order reducing
the Frozen Amount from US$2,000,000 to US$20,000
(equivalent to HK$156,000) on 11 October 2012. The
Plaintiff asserted in December 2012 that the Subject
Domain continued to sell additional Klipsch-Branded
Iltems. The Group filed additional sales documents
establishing that the revenues derived from sales into
the U.S. of the addifional Klipsch-Branded Items were
less than US$125. At the date of this report, no hearing
to determine the merits of Plaintiff’s claim has been
held and the Litigation has not yet been closed.
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e ISR MR

FRA=ZTHLEFE

LITIGATION (continued) 36. Fak®)
The directors of the Company (the “Director”) have AARESR([EF]) B 2EMTEZFL
exercised their due care in assessing the financial FEEZEMERRE (MANE) H2H
impact in respect of the legal costs and claims, if BRER2EE - KEERE (VREHEEE
any, of the Litigation. After consideration of (i) the HAEEGEUBREMSETEKN : &
Infringing Sales Amount were not material to the (iyp iz TEZKIipschDDHE‘.'é%%EEE$%
consolidated financial statements of the Group; and BHEP—EHED ([HEFA]) RH
(i) the allegedly-infringing Klipsch-Branded ltems TJ%ZKEIEEH FﬁfﬁAE’\_f——itﬁl—
were supplied by one of their suppliers (“Supplier ARz HER R HEFARERHRTE
A") whereas, pursuant fo a supplier agreement 1§$%L‘ATF\F)’TF$Z%§EE
commenced on 1 July 2011 entered into between the BR KARFAX: ()ERNEREH ?Bi
Group and Supplier A, Supplier A has to indemnify the EERZRE: &/ﬁ(b)ﬁﬁﬁﬁ# E i
Group in full against all liabilities, damages, costs and ZERERE ZH - MWRE - RITELEEZE
expenses arising from (a) any breach of warranty in IFH\W%DE%F%ZEFJ&&%{; EER
relation to their products; and/or (b) any legal claims ABEAEBRHEL—ZT—=F~A=t+HZ
in respect of the product infringe, patent, copyright, REMBHREACIEL T EOEME -
design right and trade mark or other intellectual
property right in relation to their products, the Directors
are of the opinion that sufficient provision has been
made in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. €@ T Az 58
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBERR SESRIAEZEEENT
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:
Financial Assets TREE
Group
FER
Financial assets af
fair value through profit or loss
ROVEHAEEZEREE
Designated as
such upon Held-fo-maturity Loans and Available-for-sale
initial recognifion Held for trading investments receivables financial assets Total
RISBRARER GRE KENBRE ERRERR It EEREE it
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 212 2013 212 2013 2012 213 2012
Z8-Zf “T-°F Z%-ZF "F--F CB-Zf "3--F ZR-ZF "F-°F Z3-ZF "3--F ZR-ZfF “3-°F
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Thr Thr TRz TEn  TEn TEx Thm x| TRz TEr FER  TiEx
Trade receivables EWBHER - - - 92,762 70419 - - 92762 70419
Financial assefs included i
in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables REE = = = 98,252 145115 - 9825 145115
Avallableforsle REERE
investment - = - - = - = - = 5
Equity investments ot BLTER AR
fair vlu through profit ~ Z ERAR
orloss REhE - - - - - - 2,585 2,353 - - 2,585 2,353
Pledged deposits BERER - - - - - - 1910 10920 7910 10920
Cosh ond cash equivalents  F£RB 2 £EER - - - - - - 80376 123,003 80,376 123,003
- - - - - 28188 351,870 - 261,885 351,870
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. €I E 98 &)

(Continued)
Financial Assets (Continued) TREE#)
Company
A4
Financial assets af
fair value through profit or loss
ROTEHABRZEREE
Designated as
such upon Held-fo-maturity Loans and Available-forsale
initial recognifion Held for trading investments receivables financial assets Total
RIS EARER KR KEHERE EAREYR It EEREE &3t
2013 2012 213 2012 213 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Z8-=F "5--fF Z®-=F _F-_F|Z8-ZF -_5--F 8-=F _Z-_f |Z%-ZF _T--F Z8-=f -_F--%
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér TAr TRz Thr  TEm TEn| TER TEr TRz TAr  TEm  TEn
Due from subsidiories EUMBRRE - - - - - - 153,083 141,601 - - 153,083 141,661
Financial assefs included ~ sFAEMFE i
in prepayments, deposits  REERZELZ
and other receivables £f - - - - - - 204 % - 204 I
Cash and cash equivalents B2 RE2EEEE - - - - - - 135 3,638 - - 135 3,638
- - - - - - 153420 145323 - 153,422 145303
Group
558
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
ROTEFABECERER
Designated as such upon Financial liabilities at
initial recognition Held for frading amortised cost Total
RMISEAREE KEEE RERHATIR ERAE @it
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“8-zf _-T--F Z%-f -F--% ZF-=F _T--f ZB-Zf T
HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HK§'000  HKS$'000
TR TiEn TER Tin ThR TiEn TR TiEn
Trade payables EIEER - - - 5 2,932 6,642 2,932 6,642
Financial liabilifies included in -~ st AZHEMFIER
other payables and accruals B EEZEBAR - - - - 40,69 23,746 40,696 23,746
Due to associates REERAINE - - - - - 294 - 294
- - - - 43,628 30,682 43,628 30,682
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. €T B2 9% #)

(Continued)

Financial liabilities

cWmasE
Company
V|

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
ROVEFARECEHAR

Designated as such upon

Financial liabilities at

initial recognition Held for trading amortised cost Total
RMISBARER KHEE RERAATIRZCRAE @it
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Z8--fF -3--f ZB-=f -—5--F CB-=f -—F--F ZB-=f _—T--
HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000
T#En ThR TER ThR TR ThR TER ThR
Due to a subsidiary ERHBARNE - - - - 1,276 - 1,276 -
Financial liabiliies included in -~ st AZHERFUER
other payables and accruals  EifEEZERER - - - 5 1451 926 1,451 926
Convertible notes TAREE - - - - - - - -
- - - - w0 21 92

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining
and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

fair values measured based on quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value
are observable, either directly or indirectly.

fair values measured based on valuation
fechniques for which all inputs which have
a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

The Group held the following financial instruments
measured at fair value as at the end of the reporting

period:
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38.

P EERHE @)
EREE

Level 2 Level 3 Total
#£28 Bz @it
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Z§-=fF _T--_f Z%-ZF _T-_f ZB-Zf _F-C
HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000
T Tin TEn Tién TAn Fitn
- - - - 2,585 2,353

38. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)
Financial assets
Level 1
-8
2013 2012
Ss=== —T—_
HK$'000  HKS'000
TR Thn
Equity invesiments af fair value ~ RATFE AR
through profit or loss ZITRRRERE 2,585 2,353
39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group'’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise interest bearing loans and other
payables and accruals. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities (e.g. trade receivables and trade
payables), which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are cash flow interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below. The
Group’s accounting policies in relation fo derivatives
are set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing financial
assets and liabilities with a floating infterest rate as
at 30 June 2012 and 2013. The Group’s results and
operatfing cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures as
the sales and purchases of the Group were mainly
tfransacted in United States dollars ("USD"), Renminbi
("RMB"), Singapore dollars ("SGD"), Australian dollars
("AUD"), Canadian dollars (*CAD"), and Hong Kong
dollars ("HKD"). Approximately 99% (2012: 99%) of
the Group’s sales are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the operating
units making the sale, and almost 97% (2012: 99%) of
costs are denominated in the units’ other functional
currency.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the exchange
rate of USD was rather stable. Approximately 88% of
the Group’s sales are denominated in this currency
(2012: approximately 91%).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the exchange rates of SGD, AUD, CAD and
RMB to HKD, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group’s profit before tax.

BHEREEERERBE
(%)

SRR (&)
REE-F-—=FAA=TALFER
ERzEEEABE - A %EHE8%
BENRSEBEE (T ZF: K
91%) °

TRETEZHECERER TR Z2ER
T RNEBE Z BB ADE MR WS RS
MIFTT - RIT - MMTTIA R A R BB & 3R
BT EBR 2 HURE -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease)
exchange rate before tax in equity*
R/ BRBLAT R F EHEm/
(T  #m/ (HD) (AA) *
% HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
% FTHET FiET
30 June 2013 —E-ZHXA=+H
If HKD weakens against SGD a1 785 7T 3L 3T 03K T 8 55 5 8 -
If HKD strengthens against SGD e 7 7T 50 ¥ 03 TL B R 5) (8) -
If HKD weakens against AUD BT R TES 5 ) -
If HKD strengthens against AUD (VR L (5) 7 -
If HKD weakens against CAD i 78 7T 3L AN T 8 55 5 (48) -
If HKD strengthens against CAD AT MTER (5) 48 -
If HKD weakens against RMB HBTEARBESRS 5 4,725 -
If HKD strengthens against RMB BT EAREHER (5) (4.725) -
30 June 2012 —E-_%XA=+H
If HKD weakens against SGD e 78 7T 3 R bR B 55 5% 19 -
If HKD strengthens against SGD fin 5 7T B 1038 T o (5%) a9) -
If HKD weakens against AUD AT H R TES 5% 414 -
If HKD strengthens against AUD ST IR TR (5%) (414) -
If HKD weakens against CAD fis 78 T H T B 53 5% (23) -
If HKD strengthens against CAD AT e s (5%) 23 -
If HKD weakens against RMB HMETEARBES 5% 5,073 -
If HKD strengthens against RMB AT AREER (5%) (5.073) -
* Excluding retained profits * TEERE AT
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Group
entered info a non-deliverable forward contract in
the amount non-deliverable of USD20,000,000 to
mitigate foreign exchange risk in view of continuing
appreciation of Renminbi. The forward contracts were
matured in May 2012.

The Group has no foreign exchange contracts
outstanding as at 30 June 2012 and 2013.

Credit risk

The Group frades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis. For fransactions that are not denominated in
the functional currency of the relevant operating unit,
the Group does not offer credit terms without the
specific approval of the management.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-
for-sale financial assets arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amount of these instruments.

Apart form E-commerce, the Group trades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties. There is no
requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit
risk are managed by customer, by geographical
region and by industry sector. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

EPRO Limited S EHR A F

BHEREEERERBE
(%)

SR B (2)
BEe—_Z——FA=ZtHLEFER K
ESEENARBFEAE - BEEINER
MmMEI L ERARBITZIERBEOA
20,000,000% 7t * Wi HMNERHA LR =
T——FRAFIH-

RZBE-—ZR-ZE—Z=ZHXA=+H" &
KEWEEAREEZERINESLD -

FERRE
AEEERERRANREERHZFE=TTE
TR 5 > NEBZBRBARIARE S
ETRGZEPHAKEERIRRF - It
S REBESHBEERRUGRERS - B
FUAMEZEEN IR EREEZIRS
MmE ARBYTERNREEEERHEL
HERTIR RS A -

AEFEARXZHFROMELEZHEMLS
MEE(BRARRSEEY  AI#H
ETMEE BAFEFABZZERAR
A HEMBRFEETITATR Z&S
FERBRBSERZETIAZERAE-
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool
considers the maturity of both ifs financial instruments

and financial assets (e.g. trade receivables) and
projected cash flows from operations.

Internally generated cash flows are the general
sources of funds fo finance the operations of the
Group. The majority of the Group’s banking facilities
are subject to floating rates and are renewable
annually. The Group regularly reviews its major funding
positions to ensure that it has adequate financial
resources to meet its financial obligations. The Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by maintaining
committed credit lines and sufficient bank deposits
to meet its short term cash requirements. The Group’s
liquidity risk management includes making available
standby banking facilities and diversifying the funding
sources.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contracted undiscounted payments, was as follows:

39.

BHEREEERERBE
(%)

REBE S E R

ERMEE(MEWESER) 2B HANK
BAREZRERE -

NHELEZRTRERAEERBESZ
—MREIR - AEEABDRITRERZD
MEFBAIRFFEM - NEE AR HE
TEEEMN  UBRESRHAUBER
NENEMBEL AEEEEEBER
AHBAZEAKERER  UERKESZ
BERM YRABRBIRITER  AEMN
EHRETE -AKEZRHMRERE R
BERERHAEARITRERDHMESK
R e

RBEHR FEEZSRABEREERT
)R AR ZIE 2 FIEAER T ¢

Group
Ly 3}
3to less
On demand Less than 3 months than 12 months 110 5 years Total
RERER PR=EA ZEAZHRT=fA -Z1f @
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—“§-=f -%-- “§-=f -ZT--fF Z§-=f -F-- —§-=f -—§-- “§-=f -F--
HK$'000  HKS$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK§'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL TAL TEn TEL TEn TAL TEL TEL TEn TEL
Trade payables | - - 2,661 6,642 m - - - 2,932 6,642
Other payables and ~ EHERFER
accruals EirafE - 9,691 40,696 14,055 - - - - 40,696 23,746
Due fo associates RBERR LB - 294 - - - - - - - 294
- 9,985 43,357 20,697 m - - - 43,628 30,682
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

?!zfﬁ?’%@l?ﬁ%fi ER: 99085

RBETER#)

Company
Y|
3to less
On demand Less than 3 months than 12 months 110 5 years Total
RERER PR=EA ZEAZHRT=fA -1 @it
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Z8-=f -%--f ZB-z=f -%T--f Z-2-ZF -"B--%f ZB-Zf -F--F ZB-Zf -%-_%
HK$' 000 HK$'000 ~ HKS$'000 HKS'000 ~ HK$'000 HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 HK$" 000
TER TAL TER T TEx TEL TER TAL TER TEL
Duetoasubsidiary — ERMEARRF 1,276 - - - - - - - 1,276 -
Other payables and ~ EHERFER
aceruals EiaE - - 1,451 926 - - - - 1,451 926
Convertible notes TRRER - - - - - - - - - -
1,276 - 1,451 926 - - - - 2,721 926
Equity price risk BREEZKRERR

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the level
of equity indices and the value of individual securities.
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has
no significant equity price risk.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital
management is fo safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders of issue
new shares.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the fotal capital plus
net debt. Net debt includes trade payables, other
payables and accruals, deposits received in advance,
deferred revenue, amount due fto associates and
convertible notes less pledged deposits and cash and
cash equivalents. Capital includes equity atftributable
to equity holders of the Company. The gearing ratios
as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

Trade payables EREZER
Other payables and accruals HiEMNRIBERESEE
Deposits received in advance iz
Deferred revenue ERE W 5
Due to associates RERE N F) 2 A
Less: Pledged deposits i BEAER
Cash and cash equivalents RehBSEEE
Net Cash REFE

Equity attributable to equity holders #Ez#H A EHE R

Total capital RE K
Capital and net debt BERRERFE
Gearing ratio BARBELR
40. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 40.

Certain comparative figures and items and balances
have been adjusted and reclassified to conform with
the current year's presentation.

41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 41.
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25
September 2013.
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BHEREEERERBE
(%)

EXRERE @)
AEEEREABGEL R (LEHKFER
NBEANMELEBRFEAE) ERER -
BERFEREENESERR  EMEN
REAEREFAE RARERe RBTEkE-
REBERBRZFERAITHRRER BB E
AERRBRESRREEFEERB) - ELAE
BARBBEARFAE AREEDS - RS H
REBEAXAARLENOT

Group
AEEH
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E—_F
HK$’ 000 HKS$" 000
FHERT FAT
2,932 6,642
40,696 23,746
20,919 24,855
1,587 317
- 294
(7.910) (10,920)
(80.376) (123,063)
(22,152) (78,129)
220,194 297,556
220,194 297,556
198,042 219,427
NA RiE A NA i@ A

EEREF

ETHBHFECHEHARRER SR
AR FEZE257A -

BB RR AL E

MBEBRENR_T—=FLA-_THBE
B RIRETIE -



Five Year Financial Summary

FEPBEREE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and T AREBESA ABAVREE 2 £EHEE -
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial &ERIEEREZIME - HEBEARAEBE Z2EQ
years, as exiracted from the published audited financial HEERFEREX  TKEZEYSHHHE -
stafements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set

out below.
Year ended 30 June
HEAAZTHLEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
“®-=-f C-%--f ZB--§ “—T-TF —TTNF
HK$* 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TR FHEL FEL FEL TER
RESULTS %5
REVENUE ON 1,404,117 1,416,012 192,849 106,829 66,984
Cost of sales EREERK (846,180)  (809,528) (84,994) (84,854) (51,408)
Gross profit e 557,937 606,484 107,855 21,975 15,576
Other income and gains Hip A R Mz 1,581 4,008 4,253 8,110 1,819
Selling and distribution costs WERAWRA (342,082)  (371,838) (662) (642) (689)
Administrative expenses THER (133,800) (74,687) (29.336) (20,118) (20,173)
Impairment of goodwill EEEEAE (10,436) - - - -
Impairment of other HittEREERE
infangible assets (19.260) S S - -
Finance costs BERA (24) (30) (4,084) (1,534) )
Share of profits and losses of AEBERAZ B R
associates B (40) 5 (23) - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRERIERN/ (B8) 53,876 163,942 78,003 7.791 (3.469)
Income tax expense FEHER (17,050) (32,185) (6,553) (300) -
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FERF/ (58) 36,826 131,757 71,450 7,491 (3,469)
Attributable fo: UTERER
Owners of the Company ARREEA 37,105 131,490 71,450 7,491 (3.419)
Non-controlling interests EA T o (279) 267 - - (50)
36,826 131,757 71,450 7,491 (3,469)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EE 8fER
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERESR
TOTAL ASSETS BEHE 339,297 392,346 393,775 69,803 40,650
TOTAL LIABILITIES BENE (119,103) (94,790) (31,435) (37,086) (16,879)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ~ 3kiZRigs (1,532) (1,787) (1,500) - -
218,662 295,769 360,840 32,717 23,771
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